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Corporate Information

NEER

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. ZHAO Huan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY®
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Yangsheng
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan
Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. GONG Fangxiong

Board Committees
Audit Committee

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Yangsheng

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. GONG Fangxiong

Remuneration Committee

Mr. LAU Chi Kit (Chairman)
Mr. DONG Li

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan

Dr. GONG Fangxiong

Nomination Committee

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Yangsheng

Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. GONG Fangxiong

Company Secretary
Mr. CHOW Kam Keung, Albert

Authorised Representatives

Mr. DONG Li
Mr. CHOW Kam Keung, Albert

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Note:
(1 Mr. Philip- Armstrong NOZNESKY was re-designated from an

executive director to a non-executive director of the Company
on 1 September 2016
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Registered Office in the Cayman
Islands

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Unit C, 33/F,

TML Tower,

No.3 Hoi Shing Road,
Tsuen Wan, N.T.
Hong Kong

Headquarters in China

5th Floor, Xin Bao Hui Building
No. 2061, Nanhai Avenue
Nanshan District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
PRC

Company’s Website

www.leoch.com

Stock Code

842

Cayman lIslands Principal Share
Registrar

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
and Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

Bank of China
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Financial Highlig

MBRE
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Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:

ETEEREMAERAR ([RAF]) REWNEB AT
(SRR [l RASH NI ERHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t=-RA=+—-HLHFE

2016 2015 Change
—E-—R¥F —T—hF =X )
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
Revenue g 6,262,870 4,330,893 44.6%
Gross profit EH 1,025,584 769,709 33.2%
Profit before tax TR 4 280,536 134,556 108.5%
Profit attributable to [SYNCIE 2PN 3] 241,898 106,579 127.0%
owners of the parent gl
Basic earnings per share, BRERZF 0.18 0.08 125.0%
in RMB (AR¥T)
Revenue Gross profit Profit before tax
Wz E7 Gz0piawl
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT
8,000,000 1,200,000 300,000
280,536
1,025,584
6,262,870
6,000,000
800,000 769,709 200,000
4,330,893
4,000,000
134,556
400,000 100,000
2,000,000
0 0 0
2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB241.9 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.18 (2015: RMBO0.08),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,353,330,795 (2015: 1,352,776,179) in
issue during the year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
recommended the payment of the final dividend of HK5.50
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: HK2.60 cents). The Company had not declared and
paid any interim dividend or special dividend during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 23 May 2017 to Friday, 26 May 2017 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
22 May 2017.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 5 June 2017 to Wednesday, 7 June 2017 (both
days inclusive), for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entittement to receive the proposed final dividend, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for receiving the proposed
final dividend, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
2 June 2017.

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

On behalf of Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the Group’s report on its annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Period”) for
shareholders’ review.

Although performance of the global economy appeared
lackluster in 2016, the PRC economy expanded by 6.7
percent within the government’s target range of 6.5 to
7 percent. Investment by the state holding enterprises
increased by 18.7 percent (as compared to 10.9 percent
in 2015) partially reflected by the strong market demand
of telecommunication batteries following the strategic
restructuring among major telecommunication providers.
Being well prepared, the Group successfully captured the
growth momentum and commanded leading position after
its rapid growth in sale of the telecommunication application
batteries during the Period. With different degree of growth
rate in other applications and overseas market, the increment
revenue in sales amounted to approximately RMB1.16 billion,
representing a year to year increase of 36.7%.

SLI is the most important application area for lead-acid
batteries accounted for about 40-50% of the total batteries
being produced worldwide. Lot of researches indicated that
the demand for SLI batteries in the PRC will grow in single
high digit compound average growth rate (CAGR) over the
next 5 years. Under this growth rate, 50% of global SLI
batteries sales could be in the PRC by 2020. The Group
recorded significant growth in the PRC automakers and
aftermarket after years of continuing penetration effort.
Add on the steady business from overseas customers, the
increment revenue in sales amounted to approximately RMB
591 million, representing a year to year increase of 69.4%.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016

RAEBREZELBEREMARAR] ([ARF]) R
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Chairman’s Statement EERE

Motive power batteries accounted one-third of the global
lead-acid batteries demand. In 2016, more than half of
lead-acid batteries being sold in the PRC were under this
category. Our concentration in the sector of electric tricycles,
low speed electric vehicles, and electric folk lift provided
106% increase on a year to year basis in revenue and
increment value amounted to approximately RMB145 million.

The Group recorded a net profit of RMB241.9 million
and basic earnings per share of RMBO0.18 for the Period,
compared with a net profit of RMB106.6 million and basic
earnings per share of RMBO0.08 for 2015. The Board is
pleased to propose a final dividend of HK5.50 cents per
share, representing an annual dividend payout ratio of
approximately 28%.

Market Opportunities and
Challenges

Over the last 10 years, the global lead-acid battery industry
has grown at a CAGR around 5% each year. Being the
largest exporter of lead-acid battery in the PRC, the Group
has strong international presence which provides us the
opportunity to capture the growth trend in the overseas
market. In term of geographical location, the PRC will remain
the largest national market for batteries with higher growth
rate in all major market categories (Reserve power, SLI
and Motive power). During the Period, around 84% of our
revenue growth came from the PRC. Accordingly, more focus
will be on the PRC and Asia market where a tremendous
growth potential exists.

BHEMEBREHMEREEOHE RN =02—R
“ERF BRI EEEE AR EE
BYHE-RPAFINES —HmE KREHE
K REITEFER MR L ER106% @ B{EE
MPIARK146BE T

BN ARERBAFARE24 98 BT R BRE
AEFARKOAST T T —RFABESHFIA
R#¥10668 BTk BREREFARE08TT &
FEMAZZIRMN REBE 6508 FHE R
2FIRE R L 328%

™ 35 18 B2 Bk B

BETFHRE MBI NIRE TN EAF
BREER - ERBARANBRELL O A
SERERANBEBRTISES  SUMEESIIND
SREBBIRMERE RN E - B
REABERENLTS EMATEMSER (BF
B EBEOLHNEL)HEERSEREK 1]
A FAPIKI84% 2 WantE IR B P B - It EEH
IR FEERIERE N B KM -
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

The building of 5G network in the PRC will drive the growth
of telecommunication batteries in the near future. Although
the telecom restructuring has passed, the Group will put
the best effort to solid our leading position in this segment
and increase our market share. Demand is expected to
rise significantly with the construction of the 5G network
which will start in 2019. The Group is confident that we
can maintain our leading position and capture the expected
growth.

The exponential growth in batteries for renewable energy
applications and the stable growth in UPS applications and
consumer products in the PRC and overseas market will
provide another source of growth potential in the next few
years. The Group has developed plans on enlarging the share
in these markets.

The reduction in the number of lead-acid battery
manufacturers and our increased number in the automaker
list as a qualified supplier boost our SLI turnover and market
share in 2016. The high single digit growth in demand for SLI
batteries in the PRC will come from the aftermarket segment
as a result of the aging of the vehicle fleet in the country and
the expectation of 90 million new vehicles added over the
next 5 years. We are aggressively increasing our number in
the automaker list as a qualified supplier and enlarge our
distributor channel in the aftermarket. The Group will put
great effort in keeping the growth momentum.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

The “start-stop batteries” system technology, (which has
superior environmentally friendly design for reducing carbon
dioxide emissions and fuel saving), is believed to be one
of the applicable solutions to satisfy the China Passenger
Vehicle Fuel Consumption Standard IV which was launched
by the end of 2014 and will be put into effect starting 2016.
The standard requires an average fuel consumption level of
5.0L/100km for new passenger vehicles in 2020, compared
with the current level at 6.9L/100km. It is reasonable to
foresee that the growth in demand of start-stop batteries
will be more rapid in the next four year with the number of
new vehicles with start-stop system expected to be around
50% in 2020 as compared to just 6% in 2015. After years
of investing in research and development of the start-
stop batteries and understanding customer needs, the
Group is well prepared on exploring and capitalizing on this
tremendous opportunity.

Although motive power batteries only accounted for less than
5% of the Group’s 2016 annual sales, the Group believes
that the growth of our motive power batteries in PRC will
be supported by the continued increase in unit demand of
electric tricycles, low speed electric vehicles, and electric folk
lift in PRC.

Overseas market accounted for 39.8% of the Group’s 2016
annual sales as compared to 50.5% in 2015. Sales in Asia
and other countries recorded the highest growth rate during
the Period as compared to the United States of America
and European Union regions. The Group is targeting to keep
on the growth momentum but resources allocation will be
skewed to Asia and other countries area since higher growth
rate is expected in next year.

[RUFEA ] Rkl (AR — S eiEEm R &
HRE EHIRREGT BERAEME T —UF
EEMIN T —NFHRIAEENTBEFEAER
KBS E U ERIFEREARRA R — %IF
RER T -_TFHFRBETHMELERENRE
AT #96.9L/100kmf& (K £5.0L/100km =& — ZFf
HRUS 2SR RS E B TEEIZ R50% T =%
—RFEREC% WAILLSEER R REFREE
MERGZIRE AREAIERATE - CIBLFIRE
RSB E REREPHERE AEEERARR
RIBE L E R IET 720 2 o

BEDNEHEHAEE-F— A F2FHES
TR6% BARERS  BANHHE LR E
FEREBETEED=HE EREDE D
REBREEEE LS

ZENF BINTIB A AR B 2 F HER39.8%
i =T — A FRIR50.5%  HHESEE M L8R 1o -
MR EMBERNHERSRSIERE - AEERX
GRFHERITR  RARBF MR EMBERIEHRR
FESERE WAKEERNEEBRENRZ
FRRRAEIR
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

The reduction in number of lead-acid battery enterprises
in the PRC acts as a catalyst for business growth to the
survivors. Despite this reduction, major players will increase
their capacity in production in order to capture higher market
share and future market growth. The fierce price competition
amongst major players will continue due to the ambition of
trying to outrun the others in expanding market share. On the
other hand, the surged raw material price had neutralized the
effect of the imposition of a consumption tax of 4% on lead-
acid batteries which could affect an enterprise’s profitability in
the PRC market since selling price were constantly adjusted
and revised. However, the export performance was under
high pressure due to higher raw material cost in the PRC.
To cope with these challenges, the Group will devote more
resources to sales and marketing in the PRC and Asia
market but at the same time keeping a strict control over its
production costs and enhancing production efficiency for the
sake of making the Group a competitive enterprise.

The global economic activity is projected to pick up pace
in 2017 and 2018, especially in emerging market and
developing economies. However, there is a wide dispersion
of possible outcomes around the projections, given
uncertainty surrounding the policy stance of the new U.S.
administration and its global ramifications. It is possible that
the PRC export business can face more headwinds from
the new US government who has been threatening tough
trade measure. The Group has developed plan to deal
with the potential trade barrier and maintain our overseas
competitiveness.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

The business activities of the newly acquired lead recycling
and remanufacturing factory will start to reflect in 2017.
Through this vertical integration expansion, the Group can
effectively secure a stable and constant supply of raw
materials and facilitate its quality control as well. Meanwhile,
a synergy effect can be further achieved by the Group’s
provision of disposed batteries during the production and
collection of replaced batteries from customers as an input
for the recycling factory. The Board is of the view that,
the success in the development of recycling business will
generate steady revenue and good investment return to the
Shareholders.

Business Development

Looking forward, to cope with the challenges and fully
capture the future market opportunities, the Group must be
well prepared. The Group had provided and will continue
providing sufficient resource in research and development
and production facilities on all categories of products in order
to secure growth in the future.

In the PRC, production capacity will be further expanded on
current facilities. Non-lead related production like mould and
casting will be relocated releasing more production space
for plate and assembling. Meanwhile, new work centers are
under construction in some factories for expansion purpose.
The Group believes the capacity increase in the forseeable
future is sufficient to support our potential growth.

FIWBR I BERBE TR XA sEE—
TLFEA - BBRREARSER AEEA
BYEEIRE RSENRM TR EREEEE
e BRI AEE A A EREL ZBERE)
K AE P B R E M - [ERRE R HR
BB B AR - BEFERR BREBIENHE
REGELRENRE W RRRERRFRELIR-

EBHRRE
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

In view of the significantly rise in demand of reserve power
batteries trigger by the construction of the 5G network
in 2019 and potential growth in other application areas.
The Group is planning on constructing a new production
plant with recycling factory follow. Moreover, another new
production plant for SLI batteries is within the planning
agenda for the huge potential future growth. There are
no concrete decision at this moment nor is there any
enforceable agreement being signed. The Group will update
the market when there is any major commitment being
made to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as and when
necessary.

To cope with the potential trade barrier and maintain our
overseas competitiveness, the Group has decided to
construct a new production plant in Vietnam. There is no
enforceable agreement being signed at this moment and
the Group will update the market when there is any major
commitment being made to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules as and when necessary.

In December 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
to purchase the series B preferred stock of US-based
Gridtential Energy Inc. for a consideration of approximately
USD 1 million (total capital raised in series B preferred by
Gridtential was USD 6 million). Gridtential’s trademarked
Silicon Joule technology can be used to deliver 12V to
48V batteries which can be one-third lighter than existing
advanced lead batteries with performance up to 5 times in
power density. If the technology can successfully transfer
from lab to commercial production in the future, the Group
will be greatly benefited. The Group’s experience R&D team
including our US expert and myself will constantly monitor
the newly development of the batteries industry. Sufficient
resource will be allocated to sustain our leading position in
research & development and application of lead-acid battery
technologies in the PRC.

The Group will constantly review our strategy and
development and perform timely adjustment when required.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016

EN_T-NFCHBERKBREAELFX
Rig B0k REMERAERNNEERR REBR
IEEt 8RR A ERE BIRRME SREE IR - 1t
S Z—EHNESENLEEME HEREEREL
N AEREBRRERIERE D - B Al WEAELR
R BIRBLL R T (T AT SR BB TV 5% © R
RIE_E AR BIVE L I EAEGE R ER - AR
RS M TS DRI

REHBEE SRR NEFBINGFESY  ARE
IREA B ER—EMOEERE - 3 WR3L
IEER B AEART A] SR BIBAT T 105 AR IR L AR RIE
AT E A G M ER - NEEER R TSR
RATIEI

RZZE—RFE+ZA KRB — g WA
A #ABE B US-based Gridtential Energy Inc.HIBZ 511
£l RELA1E E%E T (Gridtentiad¥IBR 5B 5
A& HEFAEETHNESR) © Gridtentialr) IR
Siicon Joule 17 1 AR A2 FH12(K 48R B » B2
WELRENBHUCEER =)y — BNRBEH
EH) 1 88 =SS 2 % o MR B RN BRI E
BRECMEELE AESEBERRZ KEBAS
B BEEREREAARNLCHREEMHMEEE &
HEELAENTENSTRE - AEEBRATRE
BRI T APIRA B B 3% K B PR S BA B o B Al
F7E RS HIAL o

AEBETHRN AT FERER URBERR
BRI R



Chairman’s Statement EERE

Prospects

The Group will continue to drive business growth in all
categories of battery.

Lead acid batteries remain a robust and economical power
source for bulk use, accounting for more than 30% of
total global battery trading amount, and the demand is still
growing. The management is fully confident in implementing
the Group’s production and marketing strategies and intends
to seize every growth opportunity in PRC and around the
world. To cater for customer needs, the Group is committed
to high product and service quality with reasonable price.
To consolidate its competitive advantages, the Group will
continue enhancing its production and sales capacities
and provide sufficient effort and resources on technological
research and development. Thus, it aims to build itself into
the leading enterprise of the lead-acid battery industry in the
world and create value for shareholders and the society.

Acknowledgement

The sustainable development and growth of the Group is
attributable to its loyal and hardworking employees who have
devoted themselves to our corporate development. |, hereby,
on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to the contributions of all
the Group’s employees and to the long-term support and
trust by shareholders and business partners. The Group is
fully confident that it can make continuous contributions to
shareholders and the society.
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Business Review

The Group is a vertically integrated enterprise primarily
engaged in the development, sale and manufacture of lead-
acid batteries. It is one of the leading manufacturers and
exporters of lead-acid batteries in the PRC. The Group sells
over 2,000 models of lead-acid battery products, ranging in
capacity from 0.251 Ah to 4,055 Ah. Among the PRC battery
manufacturers, the Group offers one of the broadest lines of
lead-acid battery products.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB6,262.9 million,
representing an increase of 44.6% from RMB4,330.9 million
in 2015. Lead-acid batteries are generally classified into three
major market categories, namely reserve power batteries,
SLI batteries and motive power batteries. Details of business
operations of the Group in these three categories are as
follows:

Reserve power batteries

Reserve power batteries are the major revenue contributor
of the Group. The Group’s sales of reserve power batteries
during the Period amounted to RMB4,319.6 million,
representing an increase of 36.7% from 2015. Reserve
power battery products are further classified into four major
application markets, namely uninterrupted power supply
system (“UPS”), telecommunications, other consumer
products and renewable energy. During the Period, sales in
the four major application markets recorded different degree
of growth. The increased in the revenue from sales of UPS
and other consumer products categories was primarily due
to the increased average selling prices resulting from the
increase in lead price during the Period. The Group’s sales
in the telecommunication category increased significantly,
mainly due to the fact that the Group secured a large
number of orders from major telecommunication providers
during the Period, as a result, the Group became the
biggest telecommunication batteries provider in the PRC.
The increase in sales of the renewable energy category was
mainly due to its overall outperformance over the competitors
in Africa.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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SLI batteries

SLI batteries are used mainly in starting up automobiles and
motorcycles. The Group’s sales of SLI batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB1,442.8 million, representing an
increase of 69.4% from 2015. The increase was primarily due
to the Group’s continuing effort in penetrating the automobile
battery market and became the new major battery supplier
among major automobile makers in the PRC.

Motive power batteries

Motive power batteries are mainly used to provide power
for electric vehicles, forklifts, golf carts, electric bicycles
and other portable devices. During the Period, the Group
recorded sales revenue of RMB281.8 million, representing an
increase of 106.0% from 2015. The increase in sales was a
result of the increased sales of forklift batteries and electric
vehicle batteries.

Sales network

The Group distributes its products to more than 100
countries and regions across the world. The Group’s regional
sales centres are located in Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhaoging,
Nanjing, the United States, the European Union, Hong
Kong, Singapore, India, Sri Lanka, Malaysia and Australia,
together with 39 domestic sales centres across the PRC. As
at the date of this announcement, the Group has over 500
dedicated sales and after-sales employees. The Group will
continue expanding its sales teams and marketing network
to support the sales, distribution, and after-sales services for
the reserve power batteries, SLI batteries and motive power
batteries of the Group.
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Research and development of new products

The Group is a leader in research and development (‘R&D”)
and application of lead-acid battery technologies in the
PRC. The Group’s battery research and development team
consists of more than 400 researchers and technicians.
To support its R&D efforts, the Group works closely with
international and domestic battery experts and research
institutions to develop new technologies. The Group has
obtained 45 patents during the Period and there are 57
proprietary technologies in the process of patent applications
as at the date of this announcement.

The Group has grasped and applied most of the lead-acid
battery technologies in the world, including technologies
used in the first generation open-type fluid infusion battery,
the second generation Absorbent Glass Mat battery and
new energy battery, the third generation pure lead battery,
and the fourth generation Stop-Start battery. The Group is
one of a handful of enterprises in the world possessing the
third and the fourth generations of technologies. The Group’s
strong R&D capabilities enable it to produce a broad range
of battery products deploying most of the key lead-acid
battery technologies. As at the date of this announcement,
the Group has developed more than 2,000 different types of
battery products employing various application technologies,
making the Group one of the battery enterprises with the
broadest range of lead-acid batteries. During the Period, the
Group continued to provide sufficient resource in R&D on all
categories of product in order to secure growth in the future.

To sustain business growth and development, the Group
continues to explore advanced battery technologies. On
23 December 2016, the Group has entered a series B
preferred stock purchasing agreement with Gridential Energy,
Inc. (“Gridential”) for a consideration of US$999,999.81.
On 12 January 2017, Gridential has announced that total
of US$6,000,000 series B preferred stock fundraise has
completed in which there are four major battery companies
and one of them is Leoch International Technology Limited.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Gridtential’s Silicon Joule™ technology is a novel
breakthrough that replaces the lead grid inside a traditional
lead battery with a plated silicon wafer similar to a solar
cell. This approach translates to performance levels that
match or exceed lithium-ion battery performance in many
high power, medium energy and deep cycling applications,
with significant cost, safety and recycling advantages.
Gridtential is licensing the technology and building out its
drop-in specialty Silicon wafer supply, enabling manufacturing
partners to easily adapt their existing highly productive
factories to provide high performing 12V to 48V batteries to
their customers, without large scale capital investments. The
added funds will support further cost reductions and scaling
of manufacturing processes to deliver 12 to 48V batteries,
which can be one-third lighter than existing advanced lead
batteries with performance up to 5 times in power density.

The Group will work closely with Gridtential to apply the
technology from lab to commercial production.

Production bases

During the Period, the Group operated eight well-built
production bases, including four wholly-owned production
bases in the PRC, a wholly-owned production base in Sri
Lanka, two joint venture production bases in Malaysia and
a joint venture production bases in India, with a total site
area of approximately 940,000 sg.m. As at the end of 2016,
the Group had production capacity of 20.7 milion KVAh
(2015: 18.2 milion KVAh). To cope with potential business
expansion, the Group is planning to further expand its
production and manufacturing capacities in the PRC and
oversea.
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Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major sales cost for the Group’s battery
production. According to Shanghai Metals Market, an
information service provider of the non-ferrous metal market,
the monthly average lead price per ton was moving between
the range of RMB12,737 to RMB13,861 during the first
8 months of 2016, changed modestly within the range of
-2.9% to 5.6% as compare with December 2015 which
averages RMB13,122 per ton. Since September 2016, PRC
raw material price are surging, monthly average lead price
jumped to RMB14,369 during that month and ended at
RMB19,563 in December 2016 representing a rapid increase
from 9.5% to 49.1% as compare to December 2015 monthly
average lead price. The first two month average lead price
in 2017 was RMB18,300 and RMB18,933 respectively
representing lead price is stabilized at this moment. To cope
with potential risks of fluctuations in lead price, the Group
adopts a price linkage mechanism, passing raw materials
price fluctuations to customers to hedge relevant risks. The
Group’s centralized procurement of raw materials enables
it to trim down costs of raw materials through favourable
negotiations on bulk purchase contracts.

Future Prospects

In 2016, the Group managed to drive business growth in all
categories of battery. Among the RMB1.9 billion increment
in sales revenue, 84.3% was contributed from PRC.
Accordingly, PRC share of Group’s 2016 annual turnover
increased to 60.2% (2015: 49.5%). The Group believes that
the contribution in turnover will continue to be bigger in the
PRC than overseas in next few years.

The Group anticipates that lead-acid batteries will sustain the
growth momentum in three categories, namely reserve power
batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries. To grasp
these market opportunities, the Group has formulated the
following strategic plans for the three categories of lead-acid
batteries:

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Reserve power batteries

Telecom operators and equipment manufacturers are
the Group’s major customers. Reserve power battery
products have four major application areas, namely
UPS, telecommunications, other customer products and
renewable energy. The Group strongly believes that reserve
power batteries will continue sustaining growth in these four
major application markets.

The Group commanded leading position after its rapid
growth in sale of telecommunication application batteries
in the PRC. We will continue solidifying our market position
in this area and plan to further increase our market share.
Looking forward, further upgrade and development of the
5G network will provide additional boost to the demand
for telecommunications batteries over the next few years.
The rapid development of IT technologies such as cloud
computing, big data, commerce and various types of data
centers and servers will continue contributing to the growth
momentum of reserve power batteries. Besides, the market
size of the customer products and renewable energy will also
enjoy different degree of growth rate. We believe the Group
will continue to benefit from the growth in the reserve power
market in the PRC and will exert all our efforts to expand our
market share and secure our leading position in the domestic
market of reserve power battery. To deal with the intense
competition and trade barrier in overseas market, the Group
plan to expand overseas production base and will continue
seeking high quality joint venture partner to further expand
overseas business.
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SLI batteries

As a result of the strengthening investment in SLI batteries,
the Group achieved very strong sales during 2016 with nearly
70% growth as compare to 2015.

SLI is the most important application area for lead-acid
batteries with about 40-50% of the total batteries being
used worldwide. Since 2010, the PRC has been ranked first
in the World for vehicle production and sales. A consensus
has formed that the PRC will be the largest market in which
demand for SLI batteries will continue to grow and can
account up to 50% of the total SLI batteries global sales by
2020.

With the implementation of the China Passenger Vehicle
Fuel Consumption Standard IV, which requires the average
fuel consumption of all new vehicles sold in 2020 to be
5.0L/100 km as compared to the current level of 6.9L./100
km, being put into effect from the beginning of 2016, the
demand for start-stop batteries in China is poised for strong
growth. Furthermore, the aftermarket segment will facilitate
the demand for SLI batteries as a result of the ageing of the
vehicle fleet in the country. With more than 90 million new
vehicles expected to be added over the next 5 years, the
demand for SLI batteries remains robust.

Being one of the few manufacturers that posses the fourth
generation Stop-Start battery, the Group is well prepared and
planned to further increase the production capacity for SLI
batteries aiming to become one of the leading suppliers of
SLI batteries in the PRC. The Group is planning to expand
our overseas production capacity to fulfill part of the demand
from other countries.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Motive power batteries

Although this segment accounted for about 3% of the Group
turnover in 2015, it continues to record significant growth
in 2016. The demand for motive power batteries has been
propelled by the extensive promotion and application of the
batteries in electric transportation and equipment such as
electric bicycles, low-speed battery vehicles and forklifts.
The Group will pull in sufficient resources to maintain its
competitiveness in the sector of low-speed vehicles and
forklifts and try to expand its market share at a faster pace.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue
amounted to RMB6,262.9 million, representing an increase of
44.6% compared to the year ended 31 December 2015. The
profit for the year amounted to RMB231.8 million for the year
ended 2016 as compared to RMB106.3 million for the year
ended 2015, of which the profit attributable to the owners
of the parent amounted to RMB241.9 million as compared
to RMB106.6 million for the corresponding period in 2015.
Basic profit per share for the year ended 31 December 2016
was RMBO0.18.
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 44.6% from RMB4,330.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB6,262.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The revenue of reserve power batteries increased by 36.7%
from RMB3,160.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to RMB4,319.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2016, which was principally because the Group secured
a large number of orders from major telecommunication
providers during the Period, as a result, the Group became
the biggest telecommunication batteries provider in the
PRC. The revenue of SLI batteries increased by 69.4% from
RMB851.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB1,442.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
which was primarily due to the Group’s continuing effort in
penetrating the automobile battery market and became the
new major battery supplier among major automobile makers
in the PRC. The revenue of motive power batteries increased
by 106.0% from RMB136.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB281.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, which was a result of the increased sales
of forklift battery and electric vehicle battery. Details of the
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 by category of batteries are set out below:
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2016 2015
—E-A% —%-5F
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
BE/

Product category ERER W& 174 (k)%= e fhtt

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARBETT
Reserve power batteries EREN 4,319,624 69.0% 36.7% 3,160,400 73.0%
SLI batteries EEE 1,442,831 23.0% 69.4% 851,704 19.6%
Motive power batteries BNEL 281,793 4.5% 106.0% 136,774 3.2%
Other Hity 218,622 3.5% 20.1% 182,015 4.2%
Total At 6,262,870 100% 44.6% 4,330,893 100%
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Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in the PRC, the United States of America, the European
Union and other Asian countries/areas. The Group recorded
different degree of growth in its sales in the PRC, the United
States, the European Union, other Asian Countries/areas and
other secondary market.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC increased by 75.9%
from RMB2,145.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to RMB3,773.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, representing 60.2% of the Group’s total
revenue (2015: 49.5%). The increase was mainly due to
increased customer base for automobile batteries and the
Group securing a large number of sale orders from major
telecommunication providers during the Period.

The Group’s sales revenue in the United States of America
and European Union increased by 9.4% and13.3% from
RMB696.7 million and RMB672.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to RMB762.2 million and RMB761.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, respectively,
which was mainly due to the Group’s effort to reallocate
resources in order to maintain market shares in the European
market and the American market. The Group’s sales revenue
in other Asian countries/areas increased by 17.7% from
RMB582.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB685.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The increase was principally due to the Group actively
exploring other Asian market and new business in India as
result of the commencement of a joint venture operation in
India. The Group’s sales revenue from battery products in
other countries increased by 19.9% from RMB233.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB280.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016, which mainly include
customers from Africa and South America. The increase
was mainly due to the outperformance of renewable energy
batteries over the competitors in Africa.
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The following revenue information is based on the location of MU FAEZE-—ZT—"FER-_ZT—HAF+_A=1+—
the customers for the years ended 31 December 2016 and B IFFEIRE P rEMIE DBk E R
2015:
2016 2015
—-~E —2-1f
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
BR/
1§ kit (Th) = E: fht
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
PRC e 3,773,107 60.2% 75.9% 2,145,296 49.5%
United States of America ZHRARE 762,237 12.2% 9.4% 696,675 16.1%
European Union G 761,715 12.2% 13.3% 672,594 15.5%
Other Asian countries/areas HTMER R 685,775 10.9% 17.7% 582,827 13.5%
Other countries HiEX 280,036 45% 19.9% 233,501 5.4%
Total A&t 6,262,870 100% 44.6% 4,330,893 100%
Cost of Sales SHEHNAR
The Group’s cost of sales increased by 47.1% from AEEMHEERAHEEZ - T—RAF+_A=+—

RMB3,561.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015
to RMB5,237.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2016, mainly because of the increased sales volume.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 33.2% from
RMB769.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB1,025.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The overall gross profit margin decreased from 17.8% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to 16.4% for the year ended
31 December 2016. This was mainly because part of lead
price hike and consumption tax cannot fully be transferred to
customers during the Period.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 6.8% from RMB70.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB65.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 as dividend
income from available-for-sale investments and gain on
remeasurement of the previously held interest in a joint
venture cannot compensate for the decrease in bank interest
income and government grants during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by
37.1% from RMB216.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB296.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, primarily due to the increased salaries of
sale personnel and freight charges, which was in line with the
increased sales during the Period.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased slightly
by 3.6% from RMB216.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB224.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, mainly due to better control on
administrative spending despite inflation.

R&D Expenses

The development expenditure of the Group increased
by 20.0% from RMB84.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB101.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016. The increase in expenditure was mainly
used for performance enhancement of existing products
and development of new products, enhancement of product
competitiveness and increased commitment in research and
development.
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Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased slightly from
RMB75.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB75.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
which mainly comprised impairment of trade receivables of
RMB21.9 million and foreign exchange loss of RMB49.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, as compared
to the loss on inventories and properties of RMB31.0 million
and loss on forward currency contracts of RMB31.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Fair value Gain/(Loss) on Financial
Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss, net

During the Period, the Group recognized fair value gain on
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss of
RMBO0.2 million. The details are as follows:

() Forward currency contracts

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures.
These forward currency contracts are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The net gain, including
realised and unrealised, on changes in the fair value
of the forward currency contracts amounting to
RMB3.6 million (2015: net loss of RMB31.3 million)
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss during
the year. The maturity dates of the derivative financial
instruments are within one year.
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(i) Equity investments (i) EmRE
During the Period, the Group had listed equity BN REEERERPHA EmiERER
investments in Hong Kong and the PRC. The fair values B FMBAFNANBELERBEESRRZS
of the listed securities were determined by reference to FTREIRATIREMMIZREE T AR =%
their quoted market bid prices available on the relevant —NEFEVEBRFBRRTHER - AFEEE
exchanges at the end of the period. Due to the sluggish mRNERE= R ENFEERARKS4
share markets in the early of 2016 both in Hong Kong BEL(ZZE—RF: ARB114BET) °

and the PRC, net loss on equity investments of RMB3.4
million (2015: RMB11.4 million) was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the current year.

Finance Costs Bt #& B 25

The Group’s finance costs increased by 4.1% from ASEEMNTBKAREZ -"T—RAF+_A=+—
RMB104.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to  HIEFEMARB1M.7EEL  BIN41%EEEZ
RMB108.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, ZT—NE+-A=+—HILFENARE10897
mainly due to the increased bank borrowings during the &7t T3 EERREIRMIRITIE EEAIFRE -
Period.

Profit before Tax 6 B % A
As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded MR EFEZ AEBREBEEZE-_ZT— X F+=A
profit before tax of RMB280.5 million for the year ended 31 =+—HIFFEHREHANEMNARKE28058 8T

December 2016 as compared to RMB134.6 milion for the M&EZ-Z—HAF+_A=+—HILFEBAA
year ended 31 December 2015. R¥A1346BE T
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 72.6% from RMB28.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB48.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, mainly due to
the increase in profit which was subject to tax of the Group
during the Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
consolidated net profit of RMB231.8 million (2015:
RMB106.3 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016, of
which the Group recorded profit attributable to the owners of
the parent of RMB241.9 million (2015: RMB106.6 million) for
the same period.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets
of RMB759.2 million (2015: RMB279.4 million). The Group’s
current assets mainly consist of inventories, trade and bills
receivables, cash and bank balances, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables. The Group’s current liabilities mainly
consist of trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had inventories of RMB1,127.1 million (2015:
RMB889.0 million). The increase in inventory value was
primarily due to increase in per unit value of inventory due to
surging in raw material price in the last quarter of 2016 as
compared to 2015.
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Trade and Other Receivables

@)

©)

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily related
to receivables for goods sold to its customers. As at
31 December 2016, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB2,264.4 million (2015: RMB1,548.9
million). The increase in trade and bills receivables was
primarily due to significant increase in shipment at the
end of the Period.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

The Group’s prepayments and deposits mostly related
to the purchase of raw materials. As at 31 December
2016, the Group had prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of RMB134.7 million (2015: RMB119.1
million). The increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables as compared to 2015 was primarily
because the Group increased its prepayments for raw
materials due to the increase in raw material unit price.

Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2016, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB1,631.5
million (2015: RMB1,220.1 million). The increase in trade and
bills payables was mainly because of the Group’s increased
procurement for increased turnover.
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Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, advance payments from
customers for shipments, tax payables other than current
income tax liabilities and accruals for payroll and benefits
for its employees. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
had other payables and accruals of RMB542.9 million
(2015: RMB327.3 million), the increase was mainly due to
the increased advance payments from customers and the
increased VAT payables and consumption tax payables.

Capital Expenditures

During the Period, the Group invested RMB207.8 million
(2015: RMB169.0 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB759.2 million (2015: RMB279.4 million),
among which cash and bank deposits amounted to
RMB705.2 million (2015: RMB788.0 million). As at 31
December 2016, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB1,763.5 million (2015: RMB1,555.9 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB488.5
million (2015: RMB84.8 million) which has a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars and
Malaysia dollars, and the effective interest rates of which as
of 31 December 2016 were 1.50% to 7.53% (2015: 1.50%
to 7.53%).
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A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured
by pledges over certain assets of the Group including
property, plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits and
trade and bills receivables. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 25.7% (2015: 27.1%), which was
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as at
the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of the
PRC, their principal activities were transacted in U.S.
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to PRC regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion. The value of the RMB
against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may fluctuate
and is affected by, among other things, change in PRC’s
political and economic conditions. The Group’s product
sales adopted a price mechanism by which the currency
fluctuation is basically transferred to the customers, but
the Group’s foreign currency trade receivables may still be
exposed to risk in the credit period. The Group commenced
using forward currency contracts since the year 2012 to
eliminate the foreign currency exposures arising from sales
denominated in U.S. dollar. The forward currency contracts
must be in the same currency as the hedged item, i.e. U.S.
dollar.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 6 June 2016, the Group entered into an investment
agreement with Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle Co.,
Ltd. and Zhaoqging Leoch Marshell Electric Vehicle Co.,
Ltd.. Both Guangdong Marshell and Zhaoging Leoch
Marshell are wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li. Pursuant to the
investment agreement, the Group will acquire 75.34% of
the enlarged registered capital of Zhaoging Leoch Marshell
at a consideration of RMB121,065,300. The investment
agreement was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
12 August 2016. The consideration has been paid by 9
September 2016.

On 18 November 2016, the Group also entered into an
agreement with independent third parties in relation to the
proposed acquisition of 60% of the registered capital of
Taihe Dahua, a company in the PRC principally engaged in
the recycling and remanufacturing of lead from disposed
batteries for a cash consideration of RMB115,200,000. The
acquisition was completed in January 2017. An amount
of RMB23,040,000 (which is equivalent to 20% of the
consideration) was paid upon the completion.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material

acquisition or disposal of subsidiary or associated companies
by the Group during the Period.
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Employees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 12,333 employees.
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ remuneration),
which comprised wages and salaries, performance-
related bonuses, equity-settled share option expenses and
retirement benefit scheme contributions, totaled RMB646.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB548.2 million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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Directors
Executive Directors

DONG Li (Z2), aged 50, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee and
founder of the Company. Mr. Dong has been appointed
as executive director since 27 April 2010, the date of the
incorporation of our Company. Mr. Dong is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also one of the authorised
representatives of the Company and serving as director for
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Dong also serves as
director for various private wholly owned companies which
include investment holding and manufacturing enterprise.

Mr. Dong obtained an EMBA degree from National University
of Singapore in 2015. Mr. Dong graduated from Xi’an
International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi'an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Contributing to his business experience and social
participation, he received various recognitions and honours
in the past including Outstanding China Nongovernmental
Entrepreneur (R F R & B PZ%¥K), Rising Star
Entrepreneur of Shenzhen CEIITAIZEFTEZ |), Honorary
Citizen (2 R ) of Zhaoging City in China and Texas in
the United States.
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Mr. Dong also holds social positions including Council
Member of China Overseas Exchange Association (F
BINZ I E ) , overseas member of All-China Federation
of Returned Overseas Chinese (1 % 2 B 53 H E B8 &
@), Honorary Chairman of the Chinese CEO Organization
(EFRIE%E), Honorary Chairman of American Chinese
National Chamber of Commerce (EBZE AL E ), Vice
Chairman of Anhui Province Overseas Exchange Association
(ZEAEINZHE ), Honorary Chairman of Shenzhen
Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese ((# 31T iz B % B
BtA <), Vice President of Guangdong High-Tech Industry
Chamber (ER & B EZE®), Council Member of
Harmony Club of Shenzhen (I T REICMELEER) |

Mr. Dong personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2016.

ZHAO Huan (%) , aged 40, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Ms. Zhao has been
appointed as executive director since 11 June 2010.

Ms. Zhao graduated from Guangdong Economics
Management Cadre College specializing in Finance in 1996
and from the University of Hertfordshire in the UK in 2004
with a Master of Arts degree in International Business.

Ms. Zhao is experienced in international sales and
management. Ms. Zhao first joined the Group in 2004 as
a foreign trade officer. She was subsequently promoted to
foreign trade manager, deputy general manager of foreign
trade department, vice president and finally to her current
position, in which her responsibilities focus more on the
overall management and strategic development of the
Group.

Ms. Zhao personally held 1,500,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2016.
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Non-executive Director

Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY, aged 76, has been re-
designated to non-executive director since 1 September
2016 and before that, he was a non-executive director of
the Company since 11 June 2010 and president of Leoch
Battery Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Noznesky graduated from Xavier University in 1962 with
a Bachelor’s degree in Sciences and obtained a Master of
Arts degree in Russian History from Georgetown University
in 1965. He joined the Group in 2007 as president of Leoch
Battery Corp. in charge of the sale and distribution of our
products in the U.S. market.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Noznesky had been in the
management of other companies in the battery industry
including Energy Battery Group, Accumuladores Mexicanas,
GNB Inc. and General Battery Corp. He has over 40 years of
experience in sales of battery in the U.S. market.

Mr. Noznesky personally held 1,500,000 share options and

200,000 shares in the Company as at 31 December 2016
respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

LAU Chi Kit (8|5 #), aged 72, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

Mr. Lau retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the Chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently the Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he is also
an Independent Nonexecutive Director of Highlight China loT
International Limited (formerly known as Ford Glory Group
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1682), Century Sunshine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Royale Furniture
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198) and Janco Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8035). He is also an Executive Director
of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997).
The shares of Highlight China loT International Limited
(formerly known as Ford Glory Group Holdings Limited),
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Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited, Royale Furniture
Holdings Limited and Chinlink International Holdings Limited
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Mr. Lau personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2016.

CAO Yixiong Alan (B 75 ) , aged 48, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, chairman of the
audit committee and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongqging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Mr. Cao personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2016.
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LIU Yangsheng (2[5 4 ) , aged 70, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. Liu studied wireless communications at Beijing College of
Posts and Telecommunications, the predecessor of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications, from 1965 to
1970.

Mr. Liu worked at Beijing College of Posts and
Telecommunications for more than 10 years until 1984. Mr.
Liu joined the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications,
the predecessor of Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, in 1984, and served as the Director of the
cadre members department and Director of the human
resources department. Mr. Liu retired from the Ministry of
Information Industry, the predecessor of Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, in 2007. Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology is responsible for the overall
management such as promulgation of industry policies
and strategies, implementation of laws and regulations,
and assessment for approvals and permits of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC which covers aspects
of telecommunication equipment such as telecommunication
batteries. Therefore, during his time with Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and its predecessor, Mr. Liu
had the experience in working in the telecommunication
battery area. Mr. Liu is now the Chairman of Cosmos Posts
& Telecommunications International Leasing Co., Ltd. (325F
MEBHEHEEGR A7) and a Supervisor of Viton Wireless
Technology AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHEN99).

Mr. Liu personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2016.
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Dr. GONG Fangxiong (B85 1), aged 53, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director, a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company since 1 July
2015.

Dr. GONG has obtained a Ph.D. in Financial Economics from
Wharton at the University of Pennsylvania, a M.S. in Physics
from Temple University and two other degrees from Peking
University (M.A. in Operation Research and Economics and
B.S. in Physics).

Recently retired, Dr. Gong had been the Chairman of
JPMorgan China Investment Banking and the Managing
Director of JPMorgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Ltd from
September 2009 to April 2015. During that time, Dr. Gong
also held the title of Chairman of JPM China Diversified
Industry Clients. Prior to that period of time, Dr. Gong was
Head of JPMorgan China Research/Strategy and Chief
Economist, leading JPMorgan’s China research team
covering equity research, market strategy, macro and FX/
rates. Dr. Gong also co-headed JPMorgan EM Asia market
research and strategy and had been consecutively and
repeatedly rated the No.1 China analyst and strategist by
Institutional Investor and Asia Money. Dr. Gong was the
Chief Strategist and Co-Head of global currency and rates
research at Bank of America from August 1997 to May 2004
and an economist at the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
from 1995 to July 1997, where his duties included research
and policy submission to Federal Open Market Committee of
the United States of America.

Dr. Gong personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2016.
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Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 52, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary
since 1 November 2015.

Mr. Chow has over 29 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in Hong
Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises. Mr. Chow
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with
double majors in Accounting and Management Information
Systems in 1986 and a Master’s degree in Accounting in
1987 from the University of Hawaii in the United States. He
is @ member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CFA charter holder and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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ESEWRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present its report together with the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
(the “Period”) which have been audited by the Company’s
auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit committee
of the Company.

Principal Activities and
Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1)  Substantially all of our revenue is derived from batteries
using lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery
market does not grow at the rate we expect or at
all, or if lead-acid technology is replaced by another
technology, our business, profitability and future
prospects may be materially and adversely affected;

2)  Any global economic downturn, or changes in the
economic, political and social conditions in PRC may
have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;
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If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results of
operations could be adversely affected if we lose these
customers;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on major
suppliers is set out on page 61 under the heading
“Major Suppliers and Customers” of this Report of
Directors.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 91 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 92.
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The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK5.50 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: HK2.60 cents) to be payable to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 7 June 2017. Subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the said final
dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders on or
about 4 July 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group's future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
and an analysis of the performance of the Group during the
year using key financial performance indicators are set out
in the headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 14 to 33 of the annual report.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:
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Environmental Policies and
Performance (Environmental
Protection)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management constantly control and
monitor the waste level. Monitoring systems that provide on-
time reading is connected to local government authorities
in charge of environment protection for real-time monitoring
purpose.
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During the Period, the Group provided sufficient resource to
upgrade and enhance the level of environmental protection.
Most of our factories have passed the environment protection
inspection in 2016 with one factory entered the list of
approval of industry access inspection released by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedure are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
have significant impact on the Group. The Group holds high
standards of operating practices and complies with the
relevant standards. The Group has stringent requirements
to maintain high levels of quality control and responsible
business practices. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units from on a timely
basis to ensure that adjustments are made in our procedures
and operations to reflect such changes.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group complied
with the relevant laws, rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group during the Period.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group believes that employees are important asset and
provides competitive remuneration packages to attract and
retain employees. The management regularly reviews the
Group’s remuneration to its employees is up to prevailing
market demand. Furthermore, the Group provides employee
training programs to polish their skills and knowledge and
a number of staff activities to enhanced employees’ sense
of belonging and to help create a friendly and harmonious
working environment.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 95 and 96 and in
note 45 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise
the share premium account and shareholder’s contribution
less accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2016, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,519.0 million
including RMB66.6 million for the proposed final dividend.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rate
basis to existing shareholders.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 259 and 260 in
the annual report of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. ZHAO Huan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY™
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan
Mr. LIU Yangsheng
Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Dr. GONG Fangxiong

Note:
(1) Mr. Philip- Armstrong NOZNESKY was re-designated from an

executive director to a non-executive director of the Company
on 1 September 2016
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. ZHAO
Huan, Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY and Mr. CAQO Yixiong
Alan will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Directors Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from 17
November 2016, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover
for the Directors in respect of legal actions taken against the
Directors and officers. The Board reviews the extent of the
insurance cover every year.

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 34
to 41 in the annual report of the Company.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors, senior
management members and employees of the Group was
based on qualifications, years of experiences and the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed
regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

Directors Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors Interest in Transaction,
Arrangement or Contract of
Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors Interests and Short EERRMDNERK

Positions in Shares

S

S
mp

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positons R-ZT— X F+_A=+—H ARAEELTE
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in  7TIRA B & BRAR B H#A @IR EE S M
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be  E1&HIEXVERE7 MEER D B A @ AR B KB X BT
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to B ZE SOA B« SR 15 75 55 M Bl & 1671 55352115
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were required  ZBECEF R ZIEATII AN A RIBFE 2 B AR
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register  NMJA R  siOMRIE LR BIFTE EHMBITAES
required to be kept by the Company referred to in that EFTHESR ZHHIZYAESTE ([ELESFH | )EHES K

section; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company A &) MBS FTaERR MOAB I

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Number and
class of securities
subject to options
granted under the

Approximate

Number and Pre-IPO Share percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest  class of securities* Option Scheme shareholding”
EREBARH
BEABRE
sHEIR
BERREFTIRAY
Yt EmME EHBARERN RBEHEHBEARER BRBERE LD
Mr. DONG Li Interest under a Trust ~ 1,003,059,0001(L) - 74.12%
s FFE A TR
Ms. ZHAO Huan Beneficial Owner - 1,500,000°(L) 0.11%
Bt EnfEAA
Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY  Beneficial Owner - 1,500,0009(L) 0.11%
Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY: 4= B A A
Mr. CAOQ Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - 300,0004(L) 0.02%
R ytes EnEAA
Mr. LIU Yangsheng Beneficial Owner - 300,0000(L) 0.02%
S E LS EREEA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Beneficial Owner - 300,0000(L) 0.02%
BB ESE EnfEAA
* The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the — * [LIREERBRRAERBRDFHIFE -

shares of the Company.
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Notes:

Save

Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,003,059,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Jingle Bells Group Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited.
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of
a discretionary trust established by Mr. DONG Li and the
beneficiaries of such trust are family members of Mr. DONG Li.

Ms. ZHAO Huan has been granted options for 1,500,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY has been granted options for
1,500,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Please see “Share Option” below for further details of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LIU Yangsheng has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”

below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,353,349,666 shares, being the number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2016.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none

of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2016.
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Share Option

A.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2016 was 20,388,000 shares
(representing approximately 1.5% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2016 was 17,910,000 shares (representing
approximately 1.3% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders Interests
and Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

TERROBRODEZR AR

R-Z—R"E+-A=t—H0 REREFI;E
{EPI 3361 FEMECMEE - TIIAL (TE
BARREZRIZITRAER) BAERRRRNE%
A RS SRR R

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding®

Number and class
of securities

*

BRERER ERtE RHHERERN HOERESHO

Master Alliance Investment Limited Beneficial Owner 1,003,059,000(L) 74.12%
EREA

Jingle Bells Group Limited™ Interest of Controlled Corporation 1,003,059,000(L) 74.12%
XEHEE NS

DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited® Interest under a Trust 1,003,059,000(L) 74.12%

EREAE TS

* The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.

Notes:

(1) Jingle Bells Group Limited is deemed to be interested in
1,008,059,000 shares which are held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited

(2) DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is deemed to be
interested in 1,008,059,000 shares held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by DB International
Trust (Singapore) Limited. DB International Trust (Singapore)
Limited is also the trustee of a discretionary trust established
by Mr. DONG Li and the beneficiaries of such trust are family
members of Mr. DONG Li.

(8)  This is based on 1,353,349,666 shares, being the number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2016.

As disclosed above, at 31 December 2016, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests and short positions
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Connected Transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions.
The continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions entered into by the Group in 2016, which were
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out
as follows:

A.

Continuing connected transaction which
is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement, but
subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements

Leases with Mr. DONG Li and his Associates

The Company and Mr. DONG Li (our controlling
shareholder and executive Director holding about
74% of the issued share capital of the Company and
thus a connected person) renewed the master leasing
agreement dated 8 November 2012 and entered into a
new master leasing agreement dated 21 March 2016
(the “2016 Master Leasing Agreement”’). Pursuant
to the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement, members
of the Group will lease from Mr. DONG Li and/or his
associates properties for the use by members of the
Group. Individual tenancy agreement will be entered
into between members of the Group and Mr. DONG
Li and/or his associates with respect to the leasing
arrangement of individual leased property. The 2016
Master Leasing Agreement is for a term of three years
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. Upon
expiry of the term, the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
be renewed for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions under
the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2018 have been set
at RMB3.5 million, RMB3.5 million and RMB3.5 million
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2016
the aggregate rent paid by the Group under the 2016
Master Leasing Agreement was approximately RMB3.4
million.
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B. Continuing connected transaction
subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements

0

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 25 October 2012 and
entered into a new master agreement dated
13 October 2015 (the “2015 Master Sales
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group
will sell to Mr. DONG Li's associates, and
Mr. DONG Li's associates will purchase from
members of the Group, products including lead-
acid batteries, mainly start lighting and ignition
batteries, reserve power batteries and motive
power batteries, and related parts. The products
to be sold and purchased under the 2015 Master
Sales Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same type of
products is sold by us to independent third parties
on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business in the PRC. The 2015 Master
Sales Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and ending on
31 December 2018. Upon expiry of the term, the
2015 Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement.
The annual caps for the transactions under the
2015 Master Sales Agreement for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2018 have
been set at RMB100.0 million, RMB150.0 million
and RMB200.0 million respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
received by the Group under the 2015 Master
Sales Agreement was approximately RMB56.6
million.
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Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
master agreement dated 25 October 2012 and
entered into a new master agreement dated 13
October 2015 (the “2015 Master Purchase
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group
will purchase from Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and
Mr. DONG Li’s associates will sell to members
of the Group, products including battery cases,
parts, models, chargers and electronic products
(for the manufacturing of the Group’s battery
products or sale as accessories of the Group’s
battery products) and electric scooters (for use by
members of the Group). The products to be sold
and purchased under the 2015 Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same type
of products is sold to the Group by independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The 2015
Master Purchase Agreement is for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
ending on 31 December 2018. Upon expiry of
the term, the 2015 Master Purchase Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for further period of three years
by mutual agreement. The annual caps for the
transactions under the 2015 Master Purchase
Agreement for each of the three year ending
31 December 2018 have been set at RMB40.0
million, RMB50.0 million and RMB60.0 million
respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the aggregate amount paid by the Group
under the Master Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB26.8 million.
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(i)

Purchase of Facilities from Connected Persons

The Company entered into a master agreement
dated 13 October 2015 with Mr. DONG Li
(the “2015 Master Facilities Purchases
Agreement”’), which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group
will purchase from Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and
Mr. DONG Li’'s associates will sell to members of
the Group, battery facilities. The purchase price of
battery facilities by the Group shall be determined
at 8% discount to the average purchase prices
of similar battery facilities as obtained by the
Group from two independent third parties 30 days
prior to the date of relevant purchase order. The
2015 Master Facilities Purchases Agreement is
for a term commencing from 1 November 2015
up to 31 December 2017. Upon expiry of the
term, the Master Facilities Purchases Agreement
for two months ended 31 December 2015 and
each of the two years ending 31 December 2017
have been set at RMB60.0 million, RMB100.0
million and RMB100.0 million respectively. For the
year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate
amount paid by the Group under the Master
Facilities Purchase Agreement was approximately
RMB74.2 million.
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Connected transaction subject to
the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval
requirements

On 6 June 2016, Zhaoqing Leoch Battery Technology
Co., Ltd (“Zhaoging Leoch”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
agreement with Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle
Co., Ltd (“Guangdong Marshell”), a company indirect
wholly-owned by Mr. DONG LI and thus a connected
person, and Zhaoqging Leoch Marshell Electric Vehicle
Co., Ltd (the “Target Company”’), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Guangdong Marshell before the
effect of the connected transaction, pursuant to which
Zhaoqing Leoch has agreed to inject approximately
RMB121,065,300 into the Target Company to acquire
75.34% of the enlarged registered capital of the Target
Company. Details of this transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 June 2016 and the
Company’s circular dated 18 July 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under paragraphs (A) and
(B) above and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

normal commercial terms or better; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’'s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the aforementioned connected
transaction and continuing connected transactions.

Directors’ Interest in Competing
Business

On 21 December 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Mr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) with
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2016, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

11.60%
40.93%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

25.37%
35.09%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their respective close associates
(within meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers and customers.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

)

(i)

from Tuesday, 23 May 2017 to Friday, 26 May 2017
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting,
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 22 May 2017; and

from Monday, 5 June 2017 to Wednesday, 7 June
2017 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining shareholders™ entitlement to receive the
proposed final dividend, during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for receiving the proposed final dividend,
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 2 June 2017.

The details of the Company’s branch share registrar are
as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2016.

Events after the Reporting Period

Details of events after the reporting period are disclosed in
note 44 to the financial statements.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company hasn’t changed in its auditor in any of the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

DONG Li
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2017
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENTS

The Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) during the year ended 31 December 2016 save
for the derivation from code provision A.6.7.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7. of the CG Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors, as equal board members, should give
the board and any committees on which they serve the
benefit of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds
and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. They should also attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. During the year, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr.
LIU Yangsheng and Dr. GONG Fangxiong, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, were unable to
attend the AGM and the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2016 and 12 August 2016
respectively as they had business engagement.

The details of the compliance of the CG code set out in the

mandatory disclosure requirements, by the Company, are
shown below.
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MANDATORY DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board continues to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as the “comply or explain”
principle regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate governance
practices of the Company are in line with expectations of its
shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2016.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board
The Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-

executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors.
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Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprise Mr. DONG Li (chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”) and Ms. ZHAO Huan (chief
executive officer).

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director comprises Mr. Philip Armstrong
NOZNESKY.

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprise Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LIU Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr.
GONG Fangxiong.

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report, is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. Additional meetings are held when significant
events or important issues are required to be discussed
and resolved. During the year ended 31 December 2016, 8
Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
and two general meetings were held.
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Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings

The attendance  of each Director, by name, at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meetings
are set out below:

x

EFegs EFEZRERR NRRASNLER

FEFHREZEEH EFSRRTR MK
RAgMIER RER) &N

Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/

Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/
Number of Audit  Nomination Remuneration Number
Board Committee =~ Committee Committee of General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting®
HERY,/ HERE/ HERE/ HERE/ HERE/
g ENZRET REZEE FMzEg REKRE
EEnE g LG gL G f 1 G 216 gE
Executive Directors HTEZ
Mr. DONG Li e 8/8 - 2/2 2/2 1/2
Ms. ZHAO Huan HEL T 8/8 - - - 2/2
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Philip Armstrong Phiip Armstrong
NOZNESKY® NOZNESKY 7 49 3/8 - - - 1/2
Independent Non-executive BV FHTES
Directors
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan EIMERE 3/8 2/2 - 2/2 0/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng AGERE 3/8 2/2 2/2 - 0/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit ARHEE 3/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong BT 3/8 112 2/2 2/2 0/2
Notes: B 5 -

(1) Subject to Article 113.(2) of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Associations and the law and regulations of Cayman
Islands, attendance by a director at a meeting by electronic
means, such as telephonic or video-conferencing, is counted as
physical attendance.

(2)  Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 May 2016 and the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 12 August 2016.

(©)] Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY was re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director of the Company
on 1 September 2016
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various authority and duties set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a
director of a listed company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Mr. DONG Li, Ms. ZHAO Huan, Mr.
Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr.
LIU Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. GONG Fangxiong
participated in this continuous professional development
mainly by reading various materials regarding directors’
responsibilities, prevention of breaching Listing Rules and
disclosure of inside information, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. DONG Li, the Chairman of the Board, is the founder of
the Group and has extensive experience in the lead-acid
battery industry. With effect from 28 August 2014, Ms. ZHAO
Huan has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company.

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are separate and performed by different
individuals.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is engaged
for a term of three years commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.
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All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) assessing the
performance of the executive Directors and approving their
terms of their service contracts (c) review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior
management of the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; (e) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;
(f) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
comprised four members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr.
GONG Fangxiong, the latter three being independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and the director service contract of
the newly joined independnent non-executive Director. The
records of attendance of committee members, by name, at
the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Mr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong 2/2

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and Board Diversity Policy which aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board;
(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee
comprised four members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. LIU Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. GONG
Fangxiong, the latter three being independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. DONG Li is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong 2/2

All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision wiill
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (i) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (i) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (jii) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised
four members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LIU
Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. GONG Fangxiong, all
of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses relevant accounting and financial management
expertise.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2016 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2015 annual audit and 2016
interim review work, auditor’s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2015 annual and 2016 interim
financial statements, results announcement and report,
the related accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the relevant audit findings.
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The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. CAOQ Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong 1/2

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

o review of the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. The Board is of
the opinion that the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The Board
is also reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources
of staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’'s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 82 to 90 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB$2.5 million and RMBO0.4 million,
respectively.
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Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and

concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary

of the Company through the following channels with contact

details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,
N.T., Hong Kong; or

i) by email to ir@leoch.com.
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Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2016, and the Company’'s constitutional
documents are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

FIRRA & L 182 &%

RIREBEROF S MERN ARB @R EENEL
ERNBRAGREBIUIRES

R EMARA FIARBRRA® LIRZAIRERY
AURFENARR, BREGERHANSRRAGET
RERRA) R ETE -

ERXHHNEE

HE_Z-—RFT_A=+—RHILFE XQAE
BEXHHETIAEAES BARREEXHET
FHRARA] LR PTEAEE

R R RVEE

ARREWEIS IR RN L E T P BT RIET
FAHENBIRHNFEER THRFRIEASE
BERARN R B AZam AMET L it SRR
RERI M AR AALRR R AEE G —KE A RE
R R AT Rl G N B B (ELrp B4R - R
BEATTEEERAREESTHENAIETER
RAEITHARETNEBBRBEFOEMNERS A
AT SR RIENFIEHN AR EE [EERARA
BAR] — 8o

B FATEZEEMUERSERBRRNEE
“E-RNFt A=t BULEFEDET RS
R e

BELEBRRWERAA | —F—NFFR

79



80

Corporate Governance Report 1%

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.com as
a communication platform for shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.
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Company Secretary

The Company has not engaged an external service provider
as its Company Secretary, the company secretary of the
Company, Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, is the chief financial
officer and one of the employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. The Company
Secretary has provided his training records to the Company
indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings and
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials.
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Ernst & Young BB EISEBFR Tel EBEE: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F. GITIC Tower EETEREE S Fax fBEL: +852 2868 4432
577( 1 Tim Mei Avenue h{EARE221E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Leoch International Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the ‘Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to
258, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BRELER

BREXEIR (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNEEBRRERER

Inventory provision

FERE

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries. Since
the technology develops rapidly in the lead-acid
batteries industry, the Group'’s inventories are subject
to significant risk of obsolescence and significant
management’s judgements and estimates were
involved in determining the amount of provision against
slow-moving and obsolete inventories. We focused
on this area because inventory balances amounting
to RMB1,127 million were significant to the Group
which represented 16% of the total assets of the
Group and provision against inventories was made
based on subjective estimates and was influenced by
assumptions concerning future consumption or sales of
inventories.
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The disclosures about inventories are included in notes
3 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and calculate the amount of
provision. We evaluated the sales forecasts prepared
by management for the purpose of identifying the slow-
moving and obsolete inventories by checking, on a
sampling basis, to the sales orders and agreements,
and assessing the estimated sales taking into account
the previous estimations, the historical evidence
supporting underlying assumptions and current market
conditions. We also checked on a sampling basis the
aging reports of inventories and the production record
and sales of inventories made after the year end. For
the net realisable value of slow-moving and obsolete
inventories identified, we checked samples of recent
sales invoices for the value.
EECTHERERBNMRERHLREFTE MGt
BRBeHAIEF - ESCTHEEERECHER
TER BRI REHE E G EETFE R
REFS WEEEEAMGG  IHFERRRZELE
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Independent Auditor’s Report B M B ETHRE

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BRELER

BRESREIRE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNEEBERERER

Impairment of trade receivables

EZEW AR E

The Group grants different credit periods to customers.
The credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. As at 31 December 2016, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables was RMB2,227 million, with
a significant overdue balance and an impairment loss
of RMB38 million was recorded. The Group estimates
the impairment allowances for trade receivables by
assessing the recoverability based on the historical
recovery of overdue trade receivables of respective ages
and related prevailing market conditions. We focused
on this area because it requires the use of significant
estimates and judgements.

EEEREFETTIRNEER -ZEATFHEEH
B—EBE-ETEPEARXMNAIHRNEELE S
FoRZE-—RET_A=+—0 BSRYFIENEKR
HBRER/ARK222TAETT S SERNBHRNEEE
HREREBEARKIEEL E£EERBYHES
JRE W R T #) AT [B] 1 4 BT (R 5T B 5 e M i i koE
BORE B - T AT ULl D IRIE N AR VBB E 5
JEWCRIE B B E W BIE R B IR T TR
FEZTNULAE TR A A E R R HIE -

The disclosures about impairment of trade receivables
are included in notes 3 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BB HRWKFIERE WBEH N GEE M BRKR W T
324 °

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
analysis of the recoverability of trade receivables,
checked the historical settlement history and the
subsequent settlements with respective bank slips
on a sampling basis. We evaluated the aging analysis
prepared by management by checking to related sales
contracts and invoices, and the credit terms specified in
the sales contracts.

EEC THRERERNE ZRYGRIER TS -
MERE R RITEEERBEENCHERREEN-
EERBREAMEEA N REZARIHES LT
PAREEGRT HEBEERENRE DT ETIME
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Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations approved by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B M B ETHRE

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

FEUEAHBHRE
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B M EETHRE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEs

Wi/ 12
Year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_ZT—XR"F+_A=+—HILtFE

2016 2015
—E—XRHF —E-TE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T T AR®BFTT
REVENUE U & 5 6,262,870 4,330,893
Cost of sales $HE A (5,237,286) (3,561,184)
Gross profit E A 1,025,584 769,709
Other income and gains H WA R = 5 65,752 70,567
Selling and distribution expenses HE D HAX (296,682) (216,466)
Administrative expenses TERAX (224,567) (216,802)
Research and development costs T EE A AR 6 (101,865) (84,859)
Other expenses HEMAX (75,824) (75,568)
Finance costs BT R AR 7 (108,931) (104,673)
Share of profits and losses of EiH—MeE R r e
a joint venture and an associate NEHY N K B 1R (2,931) (7,352)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX A0z A 6 280,536 134,556
Income tax expense FrisHiA X 10 (48,749) (28,251)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 231,787 106,305
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the parent UNGIEZZEWN 241,898 106,579
Non-controlling interests FEFEARHE A (10,111) (274)
231,787 106,305
EARNINGS PER SHARE BARAEBEEREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhESRAEF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic BN RMBAR¥0.18%  RVBAXM0.087TC
Diluted e RMBAR®0.18%  RMBARM0.087
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—X"F+_A=+—HItFE

2016 2015
—NE —ET—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AREFT T AREEFTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEERR 231,787 106,305
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2 mE W=
Other comprehensive income REZABEFTSHEE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BarEM2EKE:
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: A HER ﬁ
Changes in fair value NI BEE 20 35,083 27,662
Income tax effect Frisfis & 31 (11,771) (4,149)
23,312 23,513
Exchange differences on translation of & 15 SN ¥ K HFE 3, =58
foreign operations 25,679 1,513
Net other comprehensive income REEZBEEHH»EE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BmrEamEmla F 5
in subsequent periods 48,991 25,026
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEHMEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HERFLIE 48,991 25,026
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEEEHWHEAE
FOR THE YEAR 280,778 131,331
Attributable to: LA AT FEAS -
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZF PN 286,380 131,605
Non-controlling interests FEIERR (5,602) (274)
280,778 131,331
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE R R &
31 December 2016
—E-R"F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR¥F AR®F T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER Yy S 13 1,877,677 1,818,984
Investment properties wWEME 14 31,663 23,760
Properties under development BRERPYE 15 40,869 45,050
Prepaid land lease payments A b A EFE 16 120,600 84,739
Goodwill Bk 17 8,660 -
Other intangible assets HEtErEE 18 285,030 181,365
Investments in a joint venture and an R—EEERFR
associate ﬁﬁ%”& T K& 19 4,127 21,898
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 20 123,967 54,257
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLUKEEWZE - BB &
property, plant and equipment REHEEZNWE] 2 14,615 12,538
Deferred tax assets BETIRE E 31 54,715 55,601
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 2,561,923 2,298,192
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7 22 1,127,126 889,027
Completed properties held for sale BIERFEE BN 23 61,702 31,984
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WA M W E 24 2,264,377 1,548,871
Prepayments, deposits and ERFRIE - FT2 &k
other receivables H i & Y RIA 25 134,725 119,085
Tax recoverable &R B FE 18 - 31,497
Derivative financial instruments ?)T EeET A 21 4,625 4,290
Equity investments at fair value NABEEHFT AEBEHN
through profit or loss EmtEE 26 13,595 22,543
Pledged deposits EEBER 27 490,885 580,401
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEEEY 27 214,344 207,618
Total current assets mBEEMEE 4,311,379 3,435,316
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and bills payables B SN B RENEE 28 1,631,484 1,220,091
Other payables and accruals HEMEAFIBEREREA 29 542,867 327,258
Interest-bearing bank borrowings .ﬁ‘,u RITEE 30 1,275,014 1,471,043
Derivative financial instruments MESMTA 21 13,636 56,397
Income tax payable FET RIS L 89,212 81,080
Total current liabilities mENBER 3,552,213 3,155,869
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 759,166 279,447
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABERRBAEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,321,089 2,577,639
BETEBREMERAT | —Z—NFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & BN &

31 December 2016
—E-RFE+ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-—R¥F —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AREFT T AREEFTT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHEBERABERS
LIABILITIES 3,321,089 2,577,639
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 31 31,448 15,929
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRRITIEE 30 488,463 84,848
Deferred government grants 3 RE TR #78 B 43,249 31,280
Total non-current liabilities JFERBBERTE 563,160 132,057
Net assets BEFE 2,757,929 2,445,582
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners of BARBEEAELESR
the parent
Share capital A& s 32 115,846 115,843
Reserves i 34 2,582,042 2,323,745
2,607,888 0,439,588
Non-controlling interests FEE R R o 60,041 5,994
Total equity M AARE 2,757,929 2,445,582
Dong Li Zhao Huan
X HHE
Director Director
- -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F-—<F+-A=+—AILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

NAVEEAER
Avallable-
for-sale
Share Share investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger option  revaluation reserve fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AfthE
BEER EXRE
Bx RhEEER AkEE BRERR e EEREL fE  REEN ai KRR ER4E
RMB'000 RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR AR%BTT ARSTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Note (note 32) (note 45) (note 34) (note 34)  (note 34) (note 34) (note 34)
i3 (Wizts2)  (Rigkas)  (Msisa)  (WHERs4)  (WERSe)  (ERS4)  (WHEE34)
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-R5-f-H 115,742 1,260,360 275,106 32,939 1,99 85,012 1,083 558,441 2,330,676 - 2330676
Proft for the year REEET - - - - - - - 106579 106579 (74) 106,305
Other comprehensive income TEREMRENRE:
for the year:
Changes n fair value of AEHEREALEE
available-for-sale investments, 29 NBHE
net of tax - - - - 23513 - - - 23513 - 23,613
Exchange differences on ranglation ~~ BEENEBNELZE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 1513 - 1,513 - 1,513
Total comprehensive income REERENREE
for the year - - - - 23513 - 1,513 106,579 131,605 (o4 131,331
Exercise of share options fIieBRE k% 101 97 - (587) - - - - 451 - 451
Final 2014 dividend paid BRZE-MERBRS - (23,999 - - - - - - (23,999 - (23,999
Equity-settled share option IEREENERERY
arangements - - - 855 - - - - 855 - 855
Capital contribution from FERBRIE
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 6,268 6,268
Appropriations to reserves BiERE - - - - - 16,526 - 16,526) - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+ZA=1-H 115,843 1,237,298 275,106 33,207 25,507 101,538 2,5% 648494 2,439,588 5994 2445582
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &R 2R

Year ended 31 December 2016

HE-_Z—XF+-_A=+—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATREAELE
Available-
for-sale
Share Share investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option  revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
e
EEEf EXRE
R4 BROBEERE AKEE BRERE W EERES #FE  REEA #it FERER ERAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARMTR AR%Tn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:n
Notes (note32)  (noted5)  (note34)  (note34)  (note34)  (note34)  (note 34)
ik (Mas2)  (Waias)  (WiEss)  (WEs4)  (MEES4)  (WE34)  (HE34)
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-75-f-H 115843 1,237,298 275,105 33,207 25,507 101,538 2,506 648,494 2,439,588 5994 2,445,582
Proft for the year REERT - - - - - - - 241898 241,808 (10,411) 231,787
Other comprehensive income FERAMRENE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of available- AHLERENLEE
for-sale investments, net of tax 28 NRHE - - - - 23,312 - - - 23,312 - 23,312
Exchenge difierences on translation BN EBMEL 28
of foreign operations - - - - - - 21,170 - 21,170 4,509 25,679
Total comprehensive income FERRENRES
for the year - - - - 23,312 - 21,170 241,898 286,380 (5,602) 280,778
Exercise of share options fifeERE 2 3 4“ - (25) - - - - 2 - 2
Lapse of share options BREXR - - - (6,657) - - - 6,657 - - -
Final 2015 dividend paid BR-E-RERERE 11 - (0419 - - = = = - (29479) - (9479
Equity-settled share option IEREENERERY
arangements - - - 1,376 - - - - 1,376 - 1,376
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEAR 3% - - - - - - - - - 59,649 59,649
Appropriations to reserves EiERE - - - - - 17,947 - (171947) - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZA=1-A 115846  1,207,864° 275,105 27,901 48,819° 119,485° 23,766 879,102° 2,697,888 60,041 2,757,929
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * WERHERANGEUBERARAZEEHER

of RMB2,582,042,000 (2015: RMB2,3283,745,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHESRER

Year ended 31 December 2016

HE-T-AFt-A=+-HLFR
2016 2015
— ¥ —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T T AR®BFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBRNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Tt Bl g ) 280,536 134,556
Adjustments for: BNV ZIEVE L T E
Finance costs YR IO 7 108,931 104,673
Interest income F) 2 WA 5 (8,717) (15,925)
Net (gain)/loss on financial instruments AR EBEZ ST AEZE
at fair value through profit or loss, net Mmert TAZ (Wa)
SRR 6 (185) 37,391
Gain on remeasurement of the E%ﬁ%’f%%ﬁfﬁ’\*ﬁ/—\%
previously held interest in NEFA R WG
a joint venture 5 (10,502) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of BEWME WEL&E
property, plant and equipment HE® (W), B8 6 (956) 3,114
Share of profits and losses of JE(E—M&aERR) KA
a joint venture and an associate N A E R X EE 2,931 7,352
Depreciation of property, M RE RERETE
plant and equipment 13 196,478 190,320
Depreciation of investment properties REMEITE 14 1,188 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR £ AH & IR 5
payments 16 2,844 1,864
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEH 18 59,627 27,880
Amortisation of deferred government iR RE B8 #e B 88
grants (4,709) (1,270)
Impairment of trade receivables 25 e WFIERE 24 21,910 1,247
Impairment of items of property, M- RE K
plant and equipment BB RIE 13 - 1,569
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FERAE/ (RE#ZD)
inventories 6 14,491 (2,836)
Gain on disposal of an associate BE—HBEARMNKE 6 - (367)
Loss on a fire incident NKHRK 6 - 30,988
Dividend income from available-for-sale & & A] K &1 & #)
investments & B A 5 (15,728) -
Equity-settled share option expenses DREmEENBRERST 6 1,376 855
649,515 521,411
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—XF+-_A=+—HItEE

RERERER

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T AR®EF T
Increase in inventories FE®EM (229,280) (121,111)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 EBGIE K
FE g 22 428 338 ) (724,653) (191,856)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BT FKIE 514 &
other receivables H b & U FRIBIE AN (14,170) (50,508)
Changes in fair value of derivative TTEeRIAAAEBE
financial instruments, net SE)FRR (39,545) (10,839)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B SN RENER
payables g, CRd) 354,423 (19,683)
Increase in other payables and accruals £ fth B X IE N fE=+ B
o 234,446 22,255
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 230,736 149,669
Income tax paid EAFTEE (41,567) (6,881)
Net cash flows from operating activites &€ FF TSRS REF5 189,169 142,788
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B YF B 12,690 13,974
Proceeds from disposal of an associate B2 & — M8 2 A A1HY
Fri8 I8 - 1,017
Purchases of items of property, BEWME BENMERHEHER
plant and equipment (232,298) (199,092)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEYE WELFREEER
property, plant and equipment B FT15 KT8 22,871 9,529
Investment in the joint venture REE N FIRIRE - (12,340)
Dividend income from available-for-sale & & Al &1L E &)
investments % B A 5 15,728 -
Increase in available-for-sale investments A {ft H & 3% & &N (34,627) (3,249)
Additions of intangible assets WINEREE (138,580) (112,228)
Additions of prepaid land lease payments 1% HNFE{f 1 ith 0 & 7K I8 - (11,737)
Proceeds from disposal/(purchase) RE/(BE)AAEE
of equity investments at fair value FHETABTERME
through profit or loss REW TS RIE 5,582 (33,984)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U & BT 8 A A 35 61 -
Net cash flows used in investing activites & /EB AR SR E
ek (348,573) (348,110)

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZE&BR &R

LB R

Year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-_T—-X"F+-A=1+—HIFE
2016 2015
— R —T-REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T T AR®BFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHFABRERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance expenses A% {7317 FKR 3 1THI X 32 22 451
New bank borrowings HMERITEE 2,152,428 2,427,415
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE (1,992,285) (2,081,180)
Interest paid EAHE (108,931) (104,673)
Capital contribution from non-controlling — FE#5 A% i% 5 E &
shareholders - 6,268
Final dividend paid BT REI B (29,478) (23,999)
Decrease in pledged deposits BT TR 89,516 42,113
Receipt of government grants W ER R S 475 B 16,678 -
Net cash flows from financing activites ~ Bt & /EBFTSIR & REF58 127,950 266,395
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE BHERREEEY ORD)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R R (31,454) 61,073
Cash and cash equivalents REVINRERIASEEY
at beginning of year 207,618 138,907
Effect of foreign exchange rate fERSHHTE  F5
changes, net 38,180 7,638
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNBEESRBESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 214,344 207,618
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HEeERBESEB/YERDWT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHER 27 214,344 207,618
BEEMEAERAT | —F AFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 755 R AR B

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZAR=+—H

1.

Corporate and Group
Information

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate holding company
is DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited, which is
the trustee of a discretionary trust established by Mr.
Dong Li and the beneficiaries of the trust are family
members of Mr. Dong Li.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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B ERSHETMKIABEREARD
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ARRIEE ([EE)RR RNARNEREE
IR A R RPN B R X BF S i K 32 B Master
Alliance Investment Limited ° 548 12R% A &) &
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited * £ 4
EFRENIHNTRETNZTEAN ZEFT
WX AREFHRENKIEKE -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

31 December 2016

—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

1. 2AREEEH (&)

FRANBARZER

ARBETEZMBEARFFNT

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ ER
WEAR MR,/ 2R E S REEHE BRTRMEEES AAREGRERIL EEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef 53
% %

IHRTERERDA 11 March 2003 PRC* RMB562,649,382 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) manufacture and sale of
(Jiangsu Leoch’) lead-acid batteries

IHETENERAR ((IHRL]) Z—TE=F=f+-B #HE AR562,649,3827C RERR SER

HENBREED

EERTRRRITERAR 9 May 2005 PRC* US$34,365,975 - 100 Investment holding and
(Zhaoging Leoch Battery Technology manufacture and sale of
Co., L td)) (‘Zhaoging Leoch’) lead-acid batteries

ERRIERRIARAR “ZERFRANA i 34,365,975 T RERR SER
([EEEL]) HENBREED

RN ENHERETERA 26 July 2006 PRC* US$10,001,455 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.) (‘Anhui Uplus’)

THNEUHRERRAERAA “EEAFLRTRA hEY 10,001, 455% T HENHERRETH
([REHERE])

FIETEERRIARAR 26 April 1999 PRC* RMB582,649,382 - 100 Investment holding and sale
(Shenzhen Leoch Battery of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd.)

AETRERRMERAR “AWANEBAZTAA  HE AR 582,649,382 REBBRAHERREEN

RETMELHERERBMAERAT 27 November 2002 PRC* RMB3,500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Dongguan Leoch Battery
Technology Co.,Ltd.)

RETRIHERERRMERAR —TTF il AR 3,500,007 HERRESH

T-A=ttH

BELEBRRWERAA | —F—NFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2016
—E—RF+=ZRA=+—H

1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. RAREEEH (&)

FRANBARZESR (#F)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
BMAL/ER
WEAR HMERYL,/ A S REEHY BRARARES ARAEEEERAL  IEER
Direct Indirect
Ef 5E
% %
EMETRERRTERAR 23 July 2013 PRC* RMB100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.)
BNETRERRITERAF “Z-ZELR-tZR  RE AR 100,000 HERKESH
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ 1S$3,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.”)
Leoch Battery Corporation ZET=FXATER EEC 3,256,000% 5 HENRETH
(ILeoch Battery Corp. )
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) of lead-acid batteries
BLrER(FE)ERAR “ZIRENRTNE B 12,000,000/ 7T REBEBRI R
([BLER]) HERKES)
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BVI™* US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited ZETREZAZTN\B  EBRAEE™ iE RERER
([Honour Label |)
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BV US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year')
Peak Year Investments Limited “ET+5-F-+HR EBRRHE™ %71 RELER
([Peak Year |)
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BvI™ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(“Shieldon”)
Shieldon International Limited ZZTHE-ATNAR RBELEE™ %7 RERR
([ Shieldon | )
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “ETHENA=tRR B 1,000,000/ 7¢ REER R

(TLeoch Battery Company |)

102 Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
(continued)

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

1. 2AREEEH (&)

FRANBARZESR (#F)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ER
WEAR MR/ AE S REEHY BRTRHEEER AAFEGREAIL EERH
Direct Indirect
Ef B
% %
Nanjing Leoch Battery Technology 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.
HRBTRERRMARAA “ZERE=ATER HE AR#300,0007 HERKEESH
Beiing Leoch Engineering Technology 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.
PRETRERRMERAR “ZEMEFZATMA  hEr AK%1,000,0007 HERKESH
Kunming Leoch Engineering Technology 25 May 2006 PRC* RMB500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.
RAETRIRREMERAR ZETAFRAZTRR  HEP AR#500,0007 HENRESH
Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp. 27 September 2007 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
RNETERRITBRAF ZERHEARZTLR  HE AR #1,000,0007 HENRESH
Catherine Holdings International 3 May 2010 BVI™* Us$6 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited
(“Catherine Holdings’)
Cathering Holdings International —Z-Z%hR=H RBRTEE™ 6ET RERER
Company Limited
([ Catherine Holdings |)
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore $G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.”)
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. “Z-ZFMARA H 2,000,004 A% T BERBEEH
(ILeoch Battery Pte. |)
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Leoch International Holding’)
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. “E-—ENA-+-H H% HME T RERR
([Leoch International Holding | )
Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp. 26 October 2010 PRC* HK$321,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(‘Anhui Leoch Power’) lead-acid batteries
CHELERRHGERAT ZE-RETAZTRE HE 321,000,000% ¢ HERBERRERD

([ZH2+ER])

BELEBRRWERAA | —F—NFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2016

-z

—=

1.
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—AF+=A=+—H

Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. RAREEEH (&)

FRANBARZESR (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
BRAL/ER
WEAR MR,/ A S REEHY BRARARES ARAEEEERAL  IEER
Direct Indirect
Ef B
% %
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. “T-ZF-A-tRB  HEEF 337,712,000 HERHENRES
HEFREN
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited “Z-Z%1A=t-8 OE 500,000 &Lt HELRESH
Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help’) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Big Help Group Limited ([Big Help!) ~ =Z——FRA+TNAA & 18T REER
IHBEEEBRAR 29 October 2014 PRC* RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Jiangsu Siting Real Estate Co., Ltd.)
(“Jiangsu Siting’)
IHBEEXERAF (IHBE)) —T-RETAZTAR #E AR 20,000,007 REZR
BEIRELE (R ERAA 17 June 2014 PRC* RMB827,456,523 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Limited)
BIREER (RY)ERAR ZE-EERRTERE HEN AR 827,456 5237 RARR
Leoch Trontek Battery Pvt 8 August 2015 India INR225,225,200 - 51 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Trontek Battery Pt —T-1®N\ANH 0E 225,225,200 HERHERKER)
HEEN
EERIERREYEERAT 12 August 2016 PRC* RMB160,690,000 - 7534 Leasing of properties
(Zhaoqing Leoch Marshell Electric
\eehicle Co., Ltd.)
EEEIERREHEARLA ZZ-RE\ATZH hE AR 160,690,000 nERE



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

1. RAIREBES (&)

FRANBARZESR (#F)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
EmAYL/ ER
WEAR HMERYL,/ A S REEHY BRTRAZEER ANAEEEZEIN  TEER
Direct Indirect
EE B
% %
LEOCH ACCUPOWER (M) SDN. BHD. 10 July 2016 Malaysia RM17,850,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-
acid batteries
LLEOCH ACCUPOWER (M) SDN. BHD. TR EtATH BRAL 17,850,0005 7 HERHERKERY
ZEALNEMERMRRBEAEBRLA 9 September 2016 PRC* RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Anhui Uplus New Energy Material
Technology Co., Ltd.)
RENEHHMERMERBEERAR Z2-REAANE e AR 5,000,007 RERER

ok

Hkk

PRC represents the People’s Republic of China excluding
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC,
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and
Taiwan.

USA represents the United States of America.

BVI represents the British Virgin Islands.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

- hEEPEARANE  TREREESES
RITHE - R EDRPIFRITTRR k6 & -

o XBEEENEBSRE-

o RERIEEREBREARS-

ERIMEZERAUARBAFERXER
BEAFESIMAEEEEFEZERN D Z
ARBZMBAT - EEGRAMII L EA
MEARZER  BERBBIRITRE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRMIEE

31 December 2016

?

—A"Ft-A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
and certain available-for-sale investments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRHIEE

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=-_A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 #REEZ%E (&)

BOEE (&)

HARAEZAEZREARRERBNERE
RS BLERN DRAZ B RIREBR G
HEGHAHBIRERRZENREEE—
UIRRAEERER 81

@ HERFREQRHEMEERBEAZANR
7

o) HMEHRBMELEZEN: &

© AEBZEREENBERERE-

B B8 R B AN ) 2 B s ek 2 $R s AR AR
Rl WHRA -G BRER KB AR
ZFEAEMAEERSERIEZ BEFSEAA
B WHERA AREZFIENERIEZE
Rk

BEakHEt2EREEERRBNASER
REZHE AR s - B G
Pt s A R 3R B AL - B SR BIAK B A R AR
SBENAAESERNIEENAE g W
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2016

7

—A"Ft-A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 #RBEE (&)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to
IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and
IAS 28

Investment Entities. Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to
IFRS 11
IFRS 14

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
IAS 1
Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial

IAS 27 Statements
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of IFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

31 December 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRMIEE

31 December 2016
—ZF— /\£E+ A= + H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 28, amendments to IFRS 11, IFRS 14,
amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41, amendments to
IAS 27, and certain amendments included in the Annual
Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle, which are not relevant
to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements,
the nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation
and disclosure in financial statements. The
amendments clarify:

(i)  the materiality requirements in IAS 1;

(i)  that specific line items in the statement of
profit or loss and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals
are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss. The
amendments have had no significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRHIEE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the
principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which
the asset is part) rather than the economic
benefits that are consumed through the use of
the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method
cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for
the calculation of depreciation of its non-current
assets.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in September 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of IFRSs. Details of the amendments
are as follows:

o IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations: Clarifies
that changes to a plan of sale or a plan
of distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the
application of the requirements in IFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the
date of classification of the non-current
assets or disposal group held for sale. The
amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group did not have any non-
current assets or disposal group held for
sale during the year.
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31 December 2016
—E—RF+=ZRA=+—H

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 & 78 oK A4 AV B R B 7%

International Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial

Amendments to
IFRS 2

Amendments to

IFRS 4 Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

IFRS 15

Amendments to
IFRS 15

IFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses’
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property?
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of
2014-2016 Cycle IFRSs'2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRHIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation associated with
the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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31 December 2016
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of
IFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in 1AS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for
application now.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRHIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates
The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRSs. In April 2016,
the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing
the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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31 December 2016
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in IAS 40.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019
and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon
adoption.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRHIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will
result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to IAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured
at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments
clarify that an entity, when assessing whether taxable
profits will be available against which it can utilise a
deductible temporary difference, needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal
of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2017.
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31 December 2016

?

—A"Ft-A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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31 December 2016

?

—A"Ft-A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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31 December 2016

7
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
and certain available-for-sale investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:
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31 December 2016
—E-RFt+-A=+—8H

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt#&3F&RMis:

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—8H

2.4 Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHEME (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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31 December 2016
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 -5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRMIEE

31 December 2016
—TE-RE+ZA=1+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 2AXTESTHERME ()

Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives ranging from 20 to 48 years.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the cost of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the land
costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other cost directly attributed to such properties
during the period of construction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Properties under development
(continued)

Properties under development are initially classified as
non-current assets and transferred to current assets
under the category of properties held for sale when
the construction of the relevant properties commences
and the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete within the
normal operating cycle.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total land and
buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on
the prevailing market prices, on an individual property
basis

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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31 December 2016
—RNFE+-A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Research and developrment costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMsE

QAT ESHHRME (/&)

BREE (BEKRMD) (&)

B L

AERE BT R G A ERFRI0FA
REGEERH -

EFRE

AEBENEFREAERERE10FMEET
A A BB 5H o

Bz

REBNRIRABAEN EBFREET A LM

IR FAZR A

PR TAGNELRSI SRR R

M EMAR FELENHAX R SEREE
BESRRR E 10 _ERESTT A B B A AR
HEMKNE TR TR EE L RESIINLAE
RS2 & B ER A BEE LR R R
BEa BRAERNTKIEBILAEEENA
S EERBENRXNBERT T2
TEEARRIEFE - AR BERT & LA_EZERI - EmR AT
B EHEEER -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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31 December 2016
—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets

recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2016
—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to

changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to the statement of
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2016
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continued to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset or
a group of financial assets have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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31 December 2016

:
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Avallable-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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31 December 2016
—RNFE+-A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investrments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
loans and borrowings as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, derivative
financial instruments and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.
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31 December 2016

7

—A"Ft-ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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31 December 2016

?

—A"Ft-ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016

QAT EESTTHRBE (&)

RERBESEY

ARmEEARERERMNE R kBeF
EBYEREFHERE MEMFR - A LA B
BRREABEE ST —RRBAR=EA
NI AXBEZDRARTZEEMNENS
MM E  BINBRARBREEELEK
REBNREER —HOMRITEX

MEEUBRRERNE BENEEEEY
BEFHERSMETRS (BETHER)
MEBETZES -

BE

%K%iﬂ&%#ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ(%ii
HERE ) R B 1R RIRER B R BEM SN IAES
&7 AR %Tﬁf'ﬁfﬁ‘“%%ﬁf’ﬁﬁ—baﬁ.ﬁr
BB - 77 A RE R

HEBNRREENTZEBEAN  BIER
BB RIRR IR (2ER) BEERIBAR
B3R A BRI AN AL IR R AETTRE IR - i 2 R RY
EEH/X DRIy D 447 1 5| R #m 0 38 D S
BRI R A AR

ZRER B 5 2 an R (L an IR R T 1F H A 138
- TRHE B EME SR EBRIER -
WHEEZENER NEREERE-



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31 December 2016
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt#&3F&RMis:

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—8H

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

@)

©®)

()

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred, the title has
been passed to the buyer and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model, further details of
which are given in note 33 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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31 December 2016
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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31 December 2016

7
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2016
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than
the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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31 December 2016
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REF=A=+—A

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independent of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Recognition of a deferred tax liability for withholding
taxes

The PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law, which
became effective on 1 January 2008, states that the
distribution of dividends by a foreign-invested enterprise
established in Mainland China to its foreign investors,
from its earnings of 2008 or thereafter, shall be subject
to withholding taxes at an applicable rate of 5% or
10%. The directors had assessed whether it is probable
for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute dividends
out of their profits earned after 1 January 2008. For
details, refer to note 31 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2016
was RMB8,660,000 (2015: Nil). Further details are
given in note 17.
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31 December 2016
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables is made based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires
management’s judgement and estimates. Provision is
made when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the debts. Where the actual
outcome or future expectation is different from the
original estimate, the differences will impact the carrying
value of the receivables, doubtful debt expenses and
write-back of impairment of trade receivables in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useftul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Useftul lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful life of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

ERSHE R (&

st TREM (&)
WE BB REH T

AEBETEYF BB MREOMGEEAIER
FRNARBITE S - Z AT ENEE R
BERRE MR BE MR R ER A A F
HIR B RRMIEL - G RARMEH - 5
HBFRERIENITEBIFELARITEHA
BEENITRERTAFAERNEE A AR
HE EEEENAERAFHRRLC GRS
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EdCBEERIHENIERBEE-
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31 December 2016

:

3.

—A"Ft-ZA=+—H

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the amount of inventories provision recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB14,491,000 (reversal of inventories provision
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2015:
RMB2,836,000) (note 6).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2016 was RMB67,143,000 (2015:
RMB40,765,000). Further details are included in note
31 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of share options

As described in note 33 to the financial statements,
the fair value of options granted under the share option
scheme is determined using the binomial lattice model.
The significant inputs into the model were the weighted
average share price at the grant date, risk-free interest
rate, exercise price, expected volatility of the underlying
shares, expected dividend yield and expected life of
options.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2016, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB257,121,000 (2015: RMB176,518,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

ERSHE R (&

st TREM (&)
SERRAEE(51E

BN EA 75 ¥ R MY EESSAT AL - AR IR I R AT B
BB R EE JHERA AR
BREF ZEAFH ANTIREA KL A
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31 December 2016
—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

. . e BN
4. Operating Segment Information 4. #&& 5 IE R
The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sale AEBRENBREE DR E REEER-
of lead-acid batteries. For management purposes, MEEMS AEEBEEEERGE X
the Group operates in one business unit based on its TREN - B — B E 6 - BIRGE R SHE
products, and has one reportable segment which is the PR E -
manufacture and sale of lead-acid batteries.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form WA FHE & D B AR iR S48 &
the above reportable operating segment. i
Geographical information HWEER
(@) Revenue from external customers @ KEIEEFHIM
2016 2015
—E-XREF —ET-RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
PRC Fh 3,773,107 2,145,296
European Union Br R 761,715 672,594
USA EH 762,237 696,675
Other Asian countries/areas Hbas MR, R 685,775 582,827
Other countries HE xR 280,036 233,501
6,262,870 4,330,893

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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4. Operating Segment Information 4.

(continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(b)  Non-current assets

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

REDRER (&)

HwEER (F)

b FFRBEE

2016 2015
—RE —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

PRC &y 2,195,708 2,059,419
Other countries/areas HEMBER & 187,533 128,915
2,383,241 2,188,334

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately RMB1,589,080,000 (2015:
RMB440,176,000) was derived from sales to one
customer, including sales to a group of entities which
are known to be under common control with that
customer, exceeding 10% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

J:zié‘h&bé?éﬂﬁ% \REEEMNNLE
oM BT EREMIANMEERARE -

FHR-—ETEEFNER

#) AR 1,580,080,0000T (ZE—HF: AR
#440,176,0007T ) 2 Wex AR B EH—EERFH
HE (EPREYENEZERPZHRE
HINEEERNEE) BRAEEEE-Z
—NE+ A=t B IFERREERN10%
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31 December 2016

— =

—=

5.
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AE+=H=+—H
Revenue, Other Income and 5. W&z -H
Gains

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods
sold. An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is

W RFTEE
WA KMz DI T -

U A R W 28

YR FETZE - B it

as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®F T
Revenue &
Sale of goods HEEBM 6,262,870 4,330,893
Other income and gains Hag AR W&
Rental income HE WA 3,563 2,567
Bank interest income RITH BUA 8,717 15,925
Government grants* 8T 4 B 15,655 35,629
Sale of scrap materials & R R 3,577 4,947
Foreign exchange gains, net SN TE 3 U 55 - JFFR - 7,864
Gains on disposal of items of property, BEWE BEX
plant and equipment HEIE B M 956 -
Fair value gains, net: NAEEKRGRFE:
Forward currency contracts measured NABEZEEFA
at fair value through profit or loss BamERPE®EH 3,551 -
Dividend income from available-for-sale REAHEERER
investments &% B A 15,728 -
Gain on remeasurement of the previously EH st E AR —MAE QA
held interest in a joint venture (note 35) FaEEDKE (H7E35) 10,502 -
Others Hip 3,503 3,635
65,752 70,567

The government grants represent various cash payments
and subsidies provided by the local government
authorities to the Group as encouragement to its

investment and technological innovation. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

subsidies.

* BT 78 BR T0 483 75 IR AT &R P45 T AR B 3R
SRIBRABEL - ASENIRE N Bl AR - L
ERAZEHENREER G RASZE-
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Profit Before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

A=A

AEBOTANR N TSR, (G A) AT
Bi&GH:

E/I

\

2016 2015
A —F-h%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P E AR®BTR ARETRT

Cost of inventories sold TEFERAK 4,323,388 2,990,154
Employee benefit expense (including EE®FIFAX (BIEES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): & (MF3E8) ) -
Wages and salaries & T ﬁ 598,075 506,168
Performance-related bonuses BB TEA 1,645 1,351
Equity-settled share option LAREZR 45 T:
expenses R 1,376 855
Pension scheme contributions RIRE 2R 45,144 39,827
646,240 548,201
Amortisation of other intangible Hib P& EgE
assets except for deferred (EIER B ABRIN)
development costs 18 2,586 1,002
Research and development costs: B AN
Deferred development costs I T (7] B P AN 8
amortised” 18 57,041 26,878
Current year expenditure RFEERX 101,865 84,859
158,906 111,737
Auditor’s remuneration ZH BN & 2,500 2,400
Unrealised (gain)/loss on: T RIERARET
( Wzs) /8 TE
Forward currency contracts NABEZHFTA
measured at fair value 1B 25 KR B
through profit or loss BEBEH 6,946 20,476
Equity investments at fair value NABEEHFA
through profit or loss BmrEmsERE (648) 13,479
6,298 33,955
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31 December 2016
—F— /\£E+ A= + H

6. Profit Before Tax (continued)

. BEUEAN (&)

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®TR AR®EF T
Realised (gain)/loss on: LA T% HHBEEIH
iz ), 1R -
Forward currency contracts L,Fﬁ BEEBTA
measured at fair value through TEmEﬁLﬁH
profit or loss BEAEH (10,497) 10,839
Expiration of warrants S fok 3w - (5,365)
Equity investments at fair value REEZEA
through profit or loss TE SR IERE 4,014 (2,038)
(6,483) 3,436
Net (gain)/loss on financial NABEEZEFA
instruments at fair value Bamie vﬂlﬂ
through profit or loss* (Meas) /S1RFER" (185) 37,391
Depreciation of items of property, VI BB N AR 13
plant and equipment HEE 196,478 190,320
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥ ¥4 & 14 1,188
Amortisation of prepaid land TEf L b FE & OB 16
lease payments 2,844 1,864
Impairment of trade receivables® B 5 RN GRIE B 24 21,910 1,247
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) ~ F &R &, CREEE ) *
of inventories* 14,491 (2,836)
Impairment of items of property, Y E& 13
plant and equipment* & iBIE B RE - 1,569
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of BEVE HWEK
property, plant and equipment, net* ?&1% TH B Y
W), B8 F R (956) 3,114
Loss on a fire incident* )\“< =P - 30,988
Gain on disposal of an associate f B — R E A A A - (367)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net* NP BEE 5,
JE%TE/ (Yez=)  FEat 49,191 (7,864)
Minimum lease payments under G iE] ii\—l— E’Jﬁ*{fﬁ
operating leases HE M 9,260 7,800
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31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

6. Profit Before Tax (continued) 6. HANEA] (&
* The amortisation of deferred development costs and * RIEFEAAEEREFERE (RERE)
impairment/(reversal of impairment) of inventories are AR EBER HERAR] F -

included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

# Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through # AREBEEEZD T ABaNESRTEBEF
profit or loss, impairment of trade receivables, impairment B -BHRENBFBERE WE BEKREE
of items of property, plant and equipment, net loss on BRE - EEME -  RERZHEENEERF
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, B AR RINEEIBFHETARE B
loss on a fire incident and net foreign exchange loss RIEMAZH -

are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

7. Finance Costs 7. BRFE AR AN

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BTSRRI IR T -
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Interest on bank borrowings RITEERE 74,645 66,544
Interest arising from discounted bills AR EBREARHE 34,286 38,129
108,931 104,673

BELEBRRWERAA | —F—NFFR 169



170

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt#&3F&RMis:

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

8. EEM<E

BRI ETRA BB R EEHI5383(1)@) - ()
OKkOiER AR (HEEEFSEER) RHIFE2
HEEIFNESMEST

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2016 2015

—E—RF —E-—T1E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT T AREEF T

Fees B 824 628
Other emoluments: H b B

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& 28 R E &R 2,153 2,277

Performance-related bonuses* 4B BN R TEAL 1,645 1,351

Equity-settled share option expenses N A E R R ER 42 115

Pension scheme contributions RREFT IR 85 77

3,925 3,820

4,749 4,448

*

to bonus payment which is determined

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8.
(continued)

(a) Independent non-executive
directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors were as follows:

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind

He BER

we ENEA
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  ARBTR

— =
—=

EE5MWE (&

31 December 2016
~NFE+ZA=+—H

(@) BUFHATES

B IFATES N 2Bl :

Performance-  Equity-settled
related  share option
bonuses expenses
NEREEN

BuENRL  BREEX
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTR

Pension
scheme
contributions Total
Bhe
B 5 ]

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR

2016 “B-XE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit BGEE 206 - - 14 - 220
Dr. Gong Fangxiong EHERT 206 - - - - 206
Mr. Liu Yangsheng EDE 206 - - 14 - 220
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan BMELE 206 - - 14 - 220
824 - - ) - 866
2015 —Z-nf
Mr. Lau Chi Kit ABGEE 193 - - - - 193
Dr. Gong Fangxiong BRERL 97 - - - - 97
Mr. Liu Yangsheng ElL 169 - - 29 - 198
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EERE 169 - - 29 - 198
628 - - 58 - 686

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2015: Nil).

F R T E R AT E A B
S (ZZ—HF:|)-
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31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non- (b) MITEERFHITES
executive director
Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
¥e 2ER NEREEN Bfkg
He BUEN BRANTL  BREEX HE 3 g

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTRL  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

2016 ZE-RE
Executive directors: RES:
Mr. Dong Li BN - 830 - - i 907
Ms. Zhao Huan* HEL T - 857 - - 8 865
- 1,687 - - 85 1,772
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky"  Philip Armstrong
Noznesky%: £ - 466 1,645 - - 2,111
- 2,153 1,645 - 85 3,883
2015 —Z-nfF
Executive directors: HIES:
Mr. Dong Li BFRH - 727 - - 73 800
Ms. Zhao Huan* HEL L - 801 - 30 4 835
Mr. Phiip Armstrong Noznesky"  Philip Armstrong
Noznesky%E " - 749 1,361 21 - 2,121
- 2,217 1,351 57 77 3,762

* HEZ TR ARR R THEH, -

Ms. Zhao Huan is also the chief executive of the

Company.

" Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky has been re- " Philip Armstrong Noznesky/t &£ B R =Z—7<
designated from an executive director to a non- FRA-—BEEARRRAMITESFHERIEH
executive director of the Company with effect from TES-

1 September 2016.
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31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non- (b) MITEERHFHITES (&)
executive director (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director FAB (BB ESHESXRBRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration FAMEN L (ZE—hF &) -

during the year (2015: Nil).

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. ZA¥EmaHMEES

The five highest paid employees during the year FARGZRTMEEHR BE=®(ZF
included three (2015: three) directors, details of whose —RF=R)EF BEEHMEFEERR LM
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of A8 N HBME (ZE—RF -MA)IF
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two EX ey MEEMNFT MBI T :
(2015: two) non-director, highest paid employees are as
follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 288 & B W48 1,457 1,075
Equity-settled share option expenses S EE AR RS 342 63
Pension scheme contributions IRREFT IR 15 5

1,814 1,148
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31 December 2016

— =

—=

9.

10.

AET=A=+—H

Five Highest Paid Employees
(continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as
follows:

hEmeHMNES (&

FHB T BEZIFESNESTIMEE A
ST

Number of employees

EEAH
2016 2015
—E—XREF “E—hF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZTE
A E#1,000,0007T 1 2
RMB1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,000,0007T &
AR #2,000,0007T 1 _
z 2

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
in the range of 15% to 35% (2015: 15% to 35%) on
taxable income.
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AREBARAEENK B ARREEMREE
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BEEYNMAEHR-

RIEFASEHSOHRAREN RRBHBEAR
% AR E E R MER SN -

HARTRBEXHSFEMAZIOME R A
(Honour Label * Peak Year * Shieldon & Catherine
Holdings ) 74 8 B B & B S N0 fE B & 56 Hh B
(B RBRAN) S &M 2T - Bt aZ
ZWB A R BRBBARATISHL

Leoch Battery Corp.JiAER ML - ZBF
EBBMMD TSR - SHERBE M E - B
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—RF N F15%235% ) 2 fi e



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

10.Income Tax (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of the subsidiary incorporated in
Hong Kong, i.e., Leoch Power Supply. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made by Leoch Battery
Company and Big Help as they did not carry on any
business in Hong Kong or had no assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

The Singapore authority approved Leoch Battery Pte’s
application for the Global Trader Programme status on
24 May 2014. The provision for Leoch Battery Pte’s
current income tax is based on the tax rate of 10%
(2015: 10%).

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group as determined in accordance with the new
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which are
taxed at preferential rates.

Jiangsu Leoch, Anhui Leoch Power and Anhui Uplus
were designated as high-tech enterprises by the
PRC tax authorities in 2015 and were entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% for the year 2016.

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=-_A=+—H

10.FRi8% (&

BERNEHEEE RN BEBTIMA LA
MEAE - BB TEIRMERBRT  BEE
B%E165% (ZF—HF:165% )5t E - BN
Leoch Battery Company & Big Helplf £ 13 &%
WEEMEL IR ANFEALEREBE
A ol BRER (] FE SR A s A - iU SR AR B
BRI -

FMEERN-_E—NEFRA-+mAH#E
Leoch Battery Pte5 B 23K & Z i 5t &l 1)
EA&5 © Leoch Battery PteBNEAFT1SH: Ji%Fi R
10% (ZZE—HF 10%) st eiE -

R S R Y T 2 AR S
51 R B BN T B T IR HT B R E
$FEBA (R BT N\F— 5 — BRHE
T A A S B MO SR B A5 9% 5
GESIEE

TEEL  ZRUETERMEZRAN BTN =
Z-hFREPERKERERSSHRRE
X M-F-RNENEEMREHRERIE
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31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—H

10.Income Tax (continued) 10. T8 % (&
The major components of income tax charge for the FAAMERAXNEEEXT T :

year are as follows:

2016 2015

—B-R"% —FT-0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®F T

Current — PRC BN ERTH I — 39,031 16,590
Current — Hong Kong BIERFE I8 — &8 3,819 4,047
Current — Singapore B HA R I8 — 37 hi 3k 5,958 3,678
Current — USA BIEATI 18 — £ F 891 1,373
Deferred tax AR A (950) 2,363
Total tax charge for the year FRFHIES H AR 48,749 28,251
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10.Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
profit before tax at the statutory rate for the country in
which the majority of the companies of the Group are

10.FRi8% (&

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

BAREE ARG D AR EMAERR (B E)
HATE B R ST B B R R B AT S A R PSR
B2 SR B IR AR R AT B IR R ST E BRI

domiciled (i.e., the PRC) to the tax expense at effective T
tax rate is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF “T-hF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®TR % ARETT %
Profit before tax Il 280,536 134,556
Tax at the applicable tax rate 1% 3@ A K5t E )
118 70,133 25.0 33,639 25.0
Tax concession for ETHEARNN
certain subsidiaries BEE (48,872) (17.4) (20,504) (15.2)
Research and development A 35K AN 0405058
costs plus deduction (7,832) (2.8) (4,873) (3.6)
Income not subject to tax DAR W (2,520) (0.9) - -
Expenses not deductible LIk b3
for tax 23,557 8.4 13,789 10.2
Tax losses not recognised AERBIAESE 14,283 5.1 7,442 55
Tax losses utilised from A
previous periods HIEE B - - (1,870) (1.4)
Effect on opening deferred tax i & T 3 &
due to decrease in the HIEE R T
tax rate %4 - - 628 0.5
Tax charge at the Group’s BEAREERBE
effective rate ATEEBIERX 48,749 17.4 28,251 21.0
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31 December 2016

7

11

12.

—RNE+-A=+—H
.Dividends 1. kK&

2016 2015
—E-XE — R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT

Final — 5.50 HK cents REF— = H5.5078 11
(2015: 2.60 HK cents) per share —ET—RF:2.60%81) 66,582 29,478

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,353,330,795
(2015: 1,352,776,179) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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1 ¥ 19 211,353,330, 795ﬁ§(:%—£¢:
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# R Mz

31 December 2016
T-AE+=A=+—H

%?%#E mis A AL

| (#&

12.Earnings Per Share Attributable 12.
to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Parent (continued)

] 77
S
2upll

T

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BRER RSB IRE ISR E
are based on:

2016 2015
—EB—XE —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AR EEREARARE SRR
holders of the parent, used ZBHRREREREB AR
in the basic and diluted earnings 14 )
per share calculations 241,898 106,579
Number of shares
B
2016 2015
—RE —ZT—hF
Shares L8V
Weighted average number of ordinary BRAESRERBF ZFA
shares in issue during the year used in 23T Tl A N 19 &
the basic earnings per share calculation 1,353,330,795 1,352,776,179
Effect of dilution — weighted average HE B - TERNETY
number of ordinary shares: 2
Share options BB % A 784,213 1,383,438

1,354,115,008 1,354,159,617
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31 December 2016

—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

18. 9% - BEN&E

Plant and Office Motor Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF HERHE WAERE AE IAR®E ERIR by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
31 December 2016 “E2-R"¥tZB=t-8
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-R%+-A=1+-H
1 January 2016 k=E-"¥-f—H 705,430 1,461,150 21,517 31,366 178,851 187,536 2,591,850
Additions HE 1,970 99,058 2112 1,71 16,108 86,71 207,790
Acquisition from a Rl NG
subsidiary (note 35) (Wi7£35) 39,212 28,720 482 1,181 3910 231 73,736
Transfers & 10,766 8,040 - - 1,426 (20,232) -
Disposals EE 9,006) (23,473) (183) (1,547) (1,660) (1,014) (36,883)
Exchange realignment 5% 4,845 368 37 56 5 - 5311
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+ZA=1-H 753,217 1,573,863 29,965 32,827 198,640 253,292 2,841,804
Accumulated depreciationand  Z3THTE RHfE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RF+-A=+—H
1 January 2016 R-Z-AF-F-8 (135,619) (468,184) (20,264) 21,622) (125,608) (1,569) (772,866)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (29,442) (131,227) (2,273) (3,139 (30,397) - (196,478)
Acquisition from a subsidiary m— KB Ak
(note 35) (H3E35) (942) (5,426) (121) (392) (2,046) - (8,927)
Disposals RE 1,656 11,210 162 1,123 817 - 14,968
Exchange realignment RS (666) 83) 1) (43) ) - (824)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-AE+-A=1-8 (165,013) (593,710) (22,527) (24,073) (157,235) (1,569) (964,127)
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+-A=1-H 588,204 980,153 7,438 8,754 41,405 251,723 1,877,677

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2016

—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

13. 9% W= K skt (&)

(continued)
Plant and Office Motor Tooling and Construction
Buidings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF B R 2 WRER HE IARZHE EEIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
31 December 2015 —“Z-n5+-A=+-H
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-ME+ZA=1+—-H
1 January 2015 k=T-H%-A-H 686,988 1,345,535 28,009 28,801 170,231 212,410 2,471,974
Additions RE 26,175 87,378 906 5,634 12,249 36,649 168,991
Transfer to investment HERTRAME
properties (note 14) (BisE14) - - - - - (23,760) (23,760)
Transfers g% 377 37,386 - - - (37,763) -
Disposals EE 9514 9,149) (1,398) (3013 (3629) - (26,703)
Exchange realignment EHHRE 1,404 - - (56) - - 1,348
At 31 December 2015 W=E-RF+-A=1-H 705,430 1,461,150 21517 31,366 178,851 187,536 2,591,850
Accumulated depreciatonand R HTE RHfE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2014 and R-Z-ME+-A=+-A
1 January 2015 kZZ2-15-A-B (104,934) (355,146) (18,648) (20,196) (94,945) - (593,869)
Depreciation provided FRITERE
during the year (30814) (119,862 (2,180) (3,507) (33867) - (190,320)
Impairment e - - - - - (1,569) (1,569)
Disposals RE 1,316 6,824 564 2,152 3,204 - 14,060
Exchange realignment XA (1,187) - - 19 - - (1,168)
At 31 December 2015 RoB-RE+-A=t+-R (135,619 (468,184 (20264) 21,622 (125,608) (1,569) (772,866)
Net carmying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-A=1+-H 569,811 992,966 7,253 9,744 53,243 185,967 1,818,984

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB643,415,000 (2015:
RMB923,251,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of

pledged assets, please refer to note 36.

R_ZE—ARFE+_A=+—8 KA&£EE®\
AN AREEB43,415,0007T (ZZE—F4F: A
R¥09023,251,0007T ) < & TETF K B HIF
EAREERER —MBTHEZER -BK

HEE

g

EEEES

BB 7E36 °
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt#&3F&RMis:

31 December 2016
—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

14.Investment Properties

14. R EY %

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®F T
Cost: PN
At 1 January n—H—H 23,760 -
Transferred from property, EREME BB REE
plant and equipment - 23,760
Transferred from prepaid land lease EEEBEMN T AERE
payments (note 16) (FF3E16) 9,253 -
At 31 December W+—ZHA=+—H” 33,013 23,760
Accumulated depreciation: ZEE:
At 1 January n—HA—H - -
Depreciation provided during the year FAFTERE (1,188) -
Transferred from prepaid land lease EEATEN B ERE
payments (note 16) (Ffi5E16) (162) -
At 31 December ®R+—-—A=+—H (1,350) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=1+—HWEAEE 31,663 23,760

182

The Group’s investment properties consist of two
industrial properties in Mainland China which were
subsequently measured using the cost model. The
directors of the Company have determined that
the investment properties consist of one class of
assets, i.e., industrial properties, based on the nature,
characteristics and risk of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2016 based on the valuation by management.
Management has reviewed the valuation assumptions
and valuation results once a year when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.
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14.Investment Properties

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=-_A=+—H

14. REYZE (&)

(continueqd)
The investment properties are leased to third parties A R ¥ IR GRE B E R TELE=F
under operating leases, further summary details Hit — S S EH R B EH37
of which are included in note 37 to the financial
statements.

. . N A
Fair value hierarchy ARBEER
The following table illustrates the fair value TREJAEEEHRITANAAEBENERE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment -

properties:

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016 using
R-ZB-AE+ZA=+-BRREBEFERAER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
EEME  EATERE BEAFUEER
HE WAHE WAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%B18E) (%2[E) (%38) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®BTn AR®TxR

Industrial properties TEME - - 49,780 49,780
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015 using
RZE-—RE+-_A=+—BRAAEBEFEMRER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERMYS BEAABR BEANAEER
wE AR BWABUE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
($178) ($27) (%38) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Industrial properties TEME - - 23,760 23,760
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31 December 2016

7

14.

15.

—A"Ft-ZA=+—H

Investment Properties
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

The fair values of the investment properties are
determined using the comparison method by making
references to comparable sale evidence as available
in the relevant market. Comparable properties of

14. REYZE (&)

IREEER (&)

FRNF-REF BBz ANEEFE
WHEERE MERASBEE=A (=T -0
FoE) -

BREMEAABETIZREBMS LA

B IHERE ERLBUEEE - F%Lﬁ(&ﬁ
BEZATFLE SREVEHREZRLUSR
B SR MUENA BB ERETON R

similar size, character and location are analysed and NEEAAEETEENEB2EREEE-
selected for each investment property in order to arrive
at a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market unit
sale rate.
Properties under Development  15. 2R R Y%
2016 2015
—R"F —T—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt aE ARBT T AR®EF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBMNE®EE 45,050 -
Additions NE 25,537 23,384
Transfer from prepaid land lease EEEEN T 16
payments HEFHIAE - 53,650
Transfer to completed properties Lﬁfih EFE
held for sale BRI (29,718) (31,984)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—88
FREE 40,869 45,050
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

16.Prepaid Land Lease Payments  16.F8{f L it A EFKE

2016 2015
—RE —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Cost: R
At 1 January n—H—H 100,424 142,337
Transfer to properties under ERERRPYE
development (note 15) (FF5E15) - (53,650)
Transfer to investment properties ERENEYE
(note 14) (BtEE14) (9,253) -
Additions NE - 11,737
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U & BT 8 A B (FI5E35) 48,696 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 139,867 100,424
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January n—H—H (13,691) (11,827)
Transfer to investment properties HEEREYE
(note 14) (FF3E14) 162 -
Recognised during the year RERNER (2,844) (1,864)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H (16,373) (13,691)
Impairment: i
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HK
+=—A=+—H (54) (54)
Carrying amount: BRIEIE
At 31 December Rn+-_HA=+—H 123,440 86,679
Less: Current portion included in B ATBNRIE -F]& Kk
prepayments, deposits and ﬁl‘t ﬁﬁﬂE Wk IE A9 BN E7
other receivables (note 25) 7 (FF3E25) (2,840) (1,940)
Non-current portion JEENHAER > 120,600 84,739
At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s R-E—NE+-_A=+—H rEFETF
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying BB EL A A RE785200007 (—E—F

amount of approximately RMB78,520,000 (2015: : & 5 +
RMB33,263,000) were pledged to secure general F P AR7533,263 00070 ) 1R L0 7 3R

banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of IE\EE#VEZ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ_iﬁﬂﬂézyi
pledged assets, please refer to note 36. R-BHACDBREEZFE F2HMEE36 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRMIEE

Goodwill acquired through a business combination
during the year ended 31 December 2016 had been
allocated to the cash-generating unit (the “CGU”) from
the acquisition, which is component of the manufacture
and sale of lead-acid batteries segment, for impairment
testing.

The acquired subsidiary is a group of CGU which
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

The key assumptions adopted on growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculation is
based on management’s best estimates. The growth
rate of 3% is determined by considering both internal
and external factors relating to the CGU. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12%.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.
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—R"F+ZA=+—H
17.Goodwill 17. &
RMB’000

AREFT
Cost and net carrying amount: FXAS K BRTEI A
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) U B BT 8 A B (FI5E35) 8,660
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H 8,660
Impairment testing of goodwill EERENR

BHE_ZT-—RE+_A=t—HEBREHKS
BN EE I EEWBEEANRSES
B ((REELEQ)ERENR ZRE
EERUARENHEMREE b0 AR —

5

FIB BB AR A— RS EA BN £BE
SEAERN B UNEMEERSRAMNE
A

ReELBUMARESRIIRERSRE
BRIARIEREESAFE MZRERE
AT ASRER B AN D FHVBEE
REAE

STEAMEABEMFANERE RITREN
FEBRHEREEEMNSREMET - 3%AYIE
RENGEFRBARSEABMIBENAE R
INBAREBET - H e mETEAFTRAAONT
REH12% °

EEERS BEANLDSEMKEIER
BREFEEFASELZEY TSEHFHENEK
H{EBHE AT KRR -
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18.0ther Intangible Assets

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

18. HMth B &=

Deferred
Computer development Customer
software costs relationship  Trademark Total
%13
B G B RFB% BE @zt

RMBO000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RWMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

31 December 2016

Cost at 1 January 2016,

—E-~Et=A=t-A
RZF-—AF—A—BHNE

net of accumulated amortisation b R 4,159 176,518 - 688 181,365
Additions RE 608 137,644 - 328 138,580
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35)  YeEEMI B A 7] (F5£35) - - 4,588 20,124 24,712
Amortisation provided during the year & A% $ 5 & (991) (57,041) (224) (1,371) (59,627)
At 31 December 2016 WZE-A"F+-A=1+-8 3,776 257,121 4,364 19,769 285,030
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RETZA=T-H:

Cost XA 9,704 378,210 4,588 21,488 413,990

Accumulated amortisation ] (5,928) (121,089) (224) (1,719) (128,960)

Net carrying amount EEFE 3,776 257,121 4,364 19,769 285,030
31 December 2015 e T s e =
At 1 January 2015: RZZ-HF—-HA—-A:

Cost A 8,646 128,789 - 1,035 138,470

Accumulated amortisation g i (4,024) (37,170) - (259) (41,459)

Net carrying amount EEFE 4,622 91,619 - 776 97,017
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of RZE-RE—A—BMKE:

accumulated amortisation G2 EH 4,622 91,619 - 776 97,017
Additions RE 450 11,777 - 1 112,228
Amortisation provided during the year 4 )5 5 (919) (26,878) - (89) (27,880)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-HAF+ZA=+—H 4,159 176,518 - 688 181,365
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RF+-A=+—H

at 1 January 2016: RZE-"E-R—-R:

Cost A 9,09 240,566 - 1,036 250,698

Accumulated amortisation REr# (4,937) (64,048) - (348) (69,333)

Net carrying amount EmEA 4,159 176,518 - 688 181,365
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31 December 2016
—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

19.Investments in a Joint Venture

19. R—BEaE A REE D

il

and an Associate ZRE
Investment in a joint venture REELENRE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Share of net assets JEfh & EFE - 18,092

On 10 July 2016, the Group obtained control
over Leoch Accupower (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“Leoch
Accupower”) which then became a subsidiary of the

Group (note 35).

The following table illustrates the financial information of

the joint venture:

RZE-—RFLtATH KXEBRRF
Leoch Accupower (M) Sdn. Bhd. ([Leoch
Accupower | ) 7 I - 8 E B It RS
=2 M@ A E) (FIEss) o

TREMA A TS LR

For the
period from
1 January
2016
to 10 July
2016 2015
B-Z—XRF
—A—HZ
—E-XREF
+tA+HBHEA —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Share of the joint venture’s loss A ERRIFARE
for the year (3,482) (7,720)
Share of the joint venture’s total JEIEEERNAIFA
comprehensive loss for the year FHEERRE (3,482) (7,720)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBREGERAINKERD
Group’s investment in the joint venture IREEERE - 18,092
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31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

19.Investments in a Joint Venture ~ 19. J?A BEeE AT RBE AT
and an Associate (continued) & (#&)
Investment in an associate REBEQTRINRE
2016 2015
—RE —RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Share of net assets B EEFE 4,127 3,806
Particulars of the associate are as follows: B ARIREEAT
Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable to
Name issued shares held and business the Group  Principal activities
rEERENG
AL M e RERER
=L FREBTROFE REEHH Bk EEEK
MSB Manufacturing Ordinary shares of RM1  Malaysia 40% Manufacture and sale of
Sdn.Bhd. each lead-acid batteries
MSB Manufacturing SREE1S T ERAE DR 40% RERHENKRESD
Sdn.Bhd. TRk

The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

AREBERZBE R ANBEE BN R AN E

BB ARREA -
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31 December 2016
—E-RFt+ZA=+—8H

19.Investments in a Joint Venture
and an Associate (continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the associate:

19.R—BEEAFAKBELT

ZRE (#&

REBEQXRNRKRE (&)

i}
2

TRERE 2 ARN S HMHER

20.Available-for-Sale Investments

2016 2015

—RE —ZT-1F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREF T

Share of the associate’s profit for the year FE{G B4 A &) 4 7 34 A 551 368

Share of the associate’s total B E A RIFANEE

comprehensive income for the year WA MR =8 551 368
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’'s ANEBREE R AIRE 2

investment in the associate BREARE 4,127 3,806

20. MR ERE

2016 2015

—XEF —ZT—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETF T

Unlisted equity investment, at cost EETRAIRE B AR 6,938 -
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value ~ FFETRRAILE L AREE 117,029 54,257
123,967 54,257

As at 31 December 2016, an unlisted equity investment
of the Group with a carrying amount of RMB6,938,000
(2015: Nil) was stated at cost less impairment because
the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates was so significant that the directors were of
the opinion that its fair value could not be measured
reliably.

BA5 A R #6938,0007T (=
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

20.Available-for-Sale Investments

21

(continued)

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to RMB35,083,000
(2015: RMB27,662,000).

The above equity investments which were designated
as available-for-sale financial assets have no fixed
maturity dates or coupon rates.

20.

31 December 2016
—E-RXFt-A=+—H

AJHEHERE (&)

RER BEANEEREME2AERAERZR
A SR E WA EE A A R 535,083,000
—ZE—RF: ARM27,662,0007T) °

iR AT E SRS RE
Ay mEFERMARELR-

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures.
These forward currency contracts are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The net gain, including
realised and unrealised, on changes in the fair value
of the forward currency contracts amounting to
RMBS3,551,000 (2015: net loss of RMB31,315,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year. The maturity dates of the
derivative financial instruments are within one year.

.Derivative Financial Instruments 21.0T4 /T A
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RHF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L BE afE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARSTn AREFTT ARETET
Forward currency contracts ~ REIEHE A4 4,625 13,636 4,290 56,397
Forward currency contracts ZHEEEN

REEE L ZMEPEBENEREINE
ER-ZERPAEER S ORI BEZ ST
ANERHE - TN RPEEEENNAREE
ST (BRECERLAER) AAR
#3551,0007T (ZE—RF SHFEBARE
31,315,0007T) ' ERERE EBmA R - T4
TRTAMIEBHAE—FAN-

BELEBRRWERAA | —F—NFFR

191



192

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2016

— =

—=

22.

23.

NEF=A=+—8
Inventories 22. 78
2016 2015
—B-R"% —FT-0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Raw materials =K 155,153 193,366
Work in progress & 699,257 450,284
Finished goods BIRX o 272,716 245,377
1,127,126 889,027
Completed Properties Held for  23.#F/EiFEC XY
Sale
2016 2015
—B-R"% —FT-0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Completed properties held for sale REFEE BT 61,702 31,984

In 2014, Jiangsu Siting, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an arrangement (the “Arrangement”) with
a constructor (the “Constructor”), an independent
third party, to develop a residential property project
for including but not limited to staff quarters (the
“Project’). The Constructor is responsible for the
management and funding of the Project and sale of the
properties after they are completed. There are certain
profit sharing arrangements between Jiangsu Siting and
the Constructor in accordance with the Arrangement,
including that Jiangsu Siting will retain certain units of
the properties. The performance of the Constructor
under the Arrangement will be guaranteed by an
independent third party.
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23.

24.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

Completed Properties Held for
Sale (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of
the properties under development and the completed
properties held for sale under the Project were
RMB40,869,000 (note 15) and RMB61,702,000,
respectively.

Trade and Bills Receivables

31 December 2016
—E-RXFt-A=+—H

23. F IS ECERYE (&

RZE—RE+-_A=1+—H ZBEBHET
MERPYERBEFEDERYENER
E5 Bl A A R #40,869,0007T (M 5E15) &2 A
R #61,702,0007T °

B ZRWHRERERREE

2016 2015

—E—XRHF —E—RHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEFTT

Trade receivables g 5 MW FRIR 2,226,964 1,540,426

Bills receivable JE W =4 75,479 24,601
Impairment BE (38,066) (16,156)

2,264,377 1,548,871

The Group grants different credit periods to customers.
Credit periods for individual customers are considered
on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers are
required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB271,596,000 (2015: RMB174,846,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB48,688,000
(2015: RMB64,277,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBMEFPETTRANGEEHR SEE
FREEHZE BT B TEPANRIH
AT S AT R E B D (T 3 e N B Z SR H
REEERN R RIBERFEREIED IR
PERZEERER UWREEERR AT
BESTHEMARRTNESR BHRIK
FIEH A R#0271,506,0007T (—ZE— R F:
AR #174,846,0007T) 5] A 52 Hif= A IR B -
m A R#48,688,0007T (ZE—HF: ARK
64,277,00070) RIET B SR8 o ILoh - NEESE
B S AR R SR A E
Bt - E S RIKRIEBATTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3 &M

31 December 2016
—E—RF+=ZRA=+—H

24.Trade and Bills Receivables 24. 8 5 WA R B RIE

(continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB86,651,000
(2015: RMB78,271,000) to banks with recourse in
exchange for cash (note 36). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB54,222,000
(2015: RMB38,477,000) were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 43 to the
financial statements.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at 31 December 2016 and 2015 based on the invoice
date, net of provisions, is as follows:

(#&

R-ZB—RE+-A=+—8 AEHR@IR
TERETEERENESEKGIE &5
BAREES6,651,000T (ZE—HF: AR
78,271,0007T) * #& LA EGR & (P 7E36) < 3K
HE 5 EUGRIERS KIB AR #54,222,00070

—T—hF: AR¥38477,0007T) TIFIER
EIRIRITRN EEXFTE HEBFIEEK
B sk AN E M RITELENEMEIBALE-
EARERBEE FHEKFIEEE 2 FI5ERN
WG M43 -

RIEBE—REFR_ZE—RF+_-_A=+—H
2B S RWFIENEREERIREZA (k
BE) ERER D ATAN T

2016 2015

—EB-RF —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T AR®F T

Within 3 months 3@ AN 1,641,807 1,174,933
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 386,401 239,221
6 to 12 months 6Z2121E A 176,558 89,764
1 to 2 years 1ZE24F 49,930 34,703
Over 2 years 2FEPA F 9,681 10,250
2,264,377 1,548,871
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

24.Trade and Bills Receivables
(continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

4.8 5 EREOE R KR 1S

(#&

BRI RR ER RN ES ST

2016 2015
—E—XRHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

At 1 January R—HA—H 16,156 14,909
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRI EEE (Mize) 21,910 1,247
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 38,066 16,156

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of RMB38,066,000 (2015:
RMB16,156,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB38,066,000 (2015: RMB19,156,000).

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
relates to individual customers that were in financial
difficulties.

The bills receivable are due to mature within one year
from 31 December 2016.

A LILE 5 REBGRIARRE R # AR E
RIERERE 5 FE kI8 A K #38,066,000
T (ZZE—AhF: AR¥16,156,0007T) 5
REOBE EXEEBEITNEREREAA
R #38,066,000C (Z T —RHF: AR
19,156,0007T ) °

R 5 MR TR ) A B A X B R Y
ERIEFAR-

EURRBENR—T—"F+-A=1t—Bis
—FREH-
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRMIEE

31 December 2016
—E-RFE+ZA=+—H

24.Trade and Bills Receivables 24 B EWREREWRERE
(continued) (&

An analysis of trade and bills receivables that were not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

AR A B AE R S K RIRUE Y & 5 W R
KRR AT -

2016 2015

—E—RF —E-T1E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T AREEFTT

Neither past due nor impaired R ER IR R BE 2,204,766 1,503,918
Past due but not impaired 81 B RORE 59,611 41,953
2,264,377 1,545,871

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers that
have not had a history of default recently.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good payment track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the directors believe that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality of the customers and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable are amounts
due from the Group’s joint venture and an associate of
nil (2015: RMB2,440,000) and RMB4,504,000 (2015:
Nil), respectively, which are repayable on credit terms
similar to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

25.Prepayments, Deposits and

26.

25.FEfT R

31 December 2016

—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

B Rl &R EMEW

Other Receivables I8
2016 2015
—E—XRHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Prepayments TETKIB 94,525 77,458
Deposits and other receivables 51 & K EAth fE U Fk T 30,561 29,242
Loans to employees MEEBEHNE ?K 6,765 6,459
Interest receivables FEULF B 34 3,986

Current portion of prepaid land A A EFHIEM

lease payments BVEAES 7 2,840 1,940
134,725 119,085

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no

recent history of default.

Equity Investments at Fair Value

bt E EE N SRR HA SR (B o b AR R PT B4R
H) & B A A LR BIE R B GRIR R

26. R EERBET AE

= N7

S 2

Through Profit or Loss mHERE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETTT
Listed equity investments, at market value Mgz MHIRE X HE 13,595 22,543
The above equity investments at 31 December 2016 FHR - R"F+ A=+ —HzE=Ek

were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss.

BRENBAFIEREER KRS HERE AR
SEEEEARBEED I ABENERE
o
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31 December 2016
—E—RF+=ZRA=+—H

27.Cash and Bank Balances and

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3 &M

27. Eﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%&i,ﬁﬁﬁ

Time Deposits GHN
2016 2015
—E-—R¥F —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®BFTT
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTH &R 214,344 207,618
Time deposits TE BRTF 3K 490,885 580,401
705,229 788,019
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing bank & @ B #tat B IR1TIE B
borrowings (9,020) (174,096)
Pledged for bills payable Bt ER R IRE T (404,771) (322,125)
Pledged for letters of credit Bt A EE T (77,094) (84,180)
(490,885) (680,401)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEHEEY 214,344 207,618
Denominated in RMB AR E 606,720 646,815
Denominated in US$ UNETTEHE 67,282 86,334
Denominated in HK$ LA TTETE 25,156 48,731
Denominated in Singapore Dollar (‘SG$”)  LAFT I T ([Fixl) it E 2,709 1,286
Denominated in Malaysian Dollar (‘MYR”) ARt ([#hE4H] ) sHE 2,354 -
Denominated in Indian Rupee LAENE ELLEHE 335 2,602
Denominated in Euro (‘EUR”) AT ([®T])&tE 305 1,442
Denominated in Sri Lankan Rupee LETEBRELETE 189 272
Denominated in Australia Dollar LORTTEHE 179 537
705,229 788,019
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27.

28.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

Cash and Bank Balances and
Time Deposits (continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposit
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

27. e RIBITHEBRUREREF

(B

ARG B B LRIEINE - 28T - RIET B
SNEE GRS A5 TE ~ ETE R ASTEE B IRARE -
AR EEALE S BREIRITIHARE L AE
SNEELAHETTONE 5765

FRIITHIR £ E B IRITERA R 2 &)
EXRMEBANE R FR 2 EFRABE—AE
—EATE RIAEEZERRE ZRM
E & BIREEIT SN R B - RITHEER
EEREREFALHBHERCHEAEER
EFEVERTT

Trade and Bills Payables 8.BEZENMERENERE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT
Trade payables P MR 641,357 335,918
Bills payable e EE 990,127 884,173
1,631,484 1,220,091
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3 &M

31 December 2016

7

—A"Ft-A=+—H

28.Trade and Bills Payables

TRIARENRE

(continued)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at IR - B S EM IE M EN R BRIRE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice BRER D ATIAT -
date, is as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Within 3 months EANRN 754,551 315,294
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 575,338 719,905
6 to 12 months 6E12E A 291,347 174,821
1 to 2 years 1ZE24F 3,563 2,791
2 to 3 years 2E3F 662 2,809
Over 3 years BiB3F 6,023 4,471
1,631,484 1,220,091

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 90-day terms. All the bills
payable have maturity dates within 180 days. As
at 31 December 2016, bills payable amounting to
RMB866,432,000 (2015: RMB837,944,000) were
issued on intercompany sales transactions within the
Group and these bills were discounted to banks for
short term financing.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s bills
payables were secured by the pledge of certain of the
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB404,771,000
(2015: RMB322,125,000) (note 36).
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Horiﬁﬂfﬁiﬁbﬁgoa REH RN =T—

F+-—A=+—8" ZISElwt%IWQTFﬁL
THHE R HEITEF R AKRES66,432,000
T (ZE—HRF: ARKS37,944,0007T) K fE
NEE  BZSRBABR TRITER RS -

RZE—RFE+-_A=+—H8B XxEEHEET
ENRIBUAREE SR 2 AK404,771,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

31 December 2016
—E—RFt+ZA=+—H

29.0ther Payables and Accruals 20. HtWENRIBER EFTE M

2016 2015
—E—-XHF —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Provision for social insurance and e R KR KRB

retirement benefits 130,577 128,704
Advances from customers BEENR 146,716 55,755
Accrued expenses JEETF X 73,450 53,754
Accrued payroll JEETT & 45,523 34,647
Payables for purchase of items of WEWE -WEEEEEE

property, plant and equipment Y FE S 5RIR 12,464 10,442
Provision for product warranties EnRESEE 10,583 10,069
Tax payables other than current FERIE (BERFTIS &Y

income tax liabilities BERIN) 103,554 14,257
Others ) 20,000 19,630

542,867 327,258

BELEBRRWERAA | —F—NFFR 201



202

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMsE

31 December 2016
—E—RF+=ZA=+—H

30.Interest-Bearing Bank

30. 5T EERI1TEE

Borrowings
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
“E-"EtZA=t+-H —E-h%+ZA=t—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRAE BRHE
(%) e AR%Trx (%) 8 ARETRT
Current Ep)
Interest-bearing bank FEBRAEE BER On demand
borrowings, guaranteed - - - LUBOR+300 &EXEE 544,240
Interest-bearing bank FERAEE BEA 1.50 to 6.77 15010 7.53
borrowings, secured 1.50£6.77 2017 1,103,711 1.50£7.53 2016 888,326
Collateralised bank advances, ~ BEMRITEL - HHEA 2.00 to 3.50 2.0010 3.50
secured 2.00£3.50 2017 54,222 2.00£3.50 2016 38,477
Current portion of long RARITEENSHL S
term bank borrowings, BER
guaranteed LIBOR +3.00 2017 117,081 - - -
1,275,014 1,471,043
Non-current FEE
Interest-bearing bank HERITIEE BEA 1.50 to 7.53 150107.53
borrowings, secured 1.50£7.53 2018-2028 78,680 1.50%7.53 2017-2028 84,848
Interest-bearing bank HERITES BER
borrowings, guaranteed LIBOR +3.00 2018 409,783 - - -
488,463 84,848
1,763,477 1,565,891
Denominated in RVMB IARKEEE 634,970 804,958
Denominated in US$ PAZETLRHE 674,702 579,043
Denominated in HK$ LA TEHE 412,809 153,387
Denominated in SG$ LAFT I Tt E 18,214 18,503
Denominated in MYR DA E S RHE 22,782 -
1,763,477 1,555,891

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

30.Interest-Bearing Bank
Borrowings (continued)

31 December 2016
—E-XFt-A=+—H

30.5TEIRITIEE (&

Analysed into: AT
2016 2015
—E-XxF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Bank loans and advances repayable: HEEBNRITERRBR:
On demand BEK - 544,240
Within one year —F R 1,275,014 926,803
In the second year B4 429,342 37,767
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-FEFRF
BREEEMF 49,225 32,533
Beyond five years hF& 9,896 14,548
1,763,477 1,555,891

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the

following pledge or guarantees:

()  Pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of (0]
RMB817,606,000 (2015: RMB1,208,881,000) for
the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 36.

(i)  Cross guarantees executed by companies within (i

the Group.

The Group entered into a three-year term loan facility
agreement amounting to US$58,000,000 on 21
September 2015 (the “Facility Agreement”) with
certain financial institutions (the “Lenders”). The
total amount of the Facility Agreement increased to
US$85,700,000 on 24 September 2015.

M EF3eH E ) -

125 585,700,000 7T

AREBHIRITEE A T E RS AERIEER :

MIRITEEUNAEBREBAARE
817,606,000t (—E—HF: AR
1,208,881,0007T) M EEEL SR (1A

AREBRRBIZTEEER

AEER —TE—RAFNA-+—HEETFS
BhbHE ([HRA L) 3] 32 € 58 458,000,0003
TR =FHESRRE HE ((REHRR]) - &t
BB eEN_S—hAEhLA-+WmA
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RIRMIEE

31 December 2016
TR -RE+ZA=1+—H

30.Interest-Bearing Bank 30.5T 2RITEE (&)

Borrowings (continued)

Under the Facility Agreement, there are specific
performance obligations that Mr. Dong Li, who is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, shall not cease
to own, directly or indirectly, of at least 51% of the
beneficial interest in the Company, carrying at least
51% of the voting right, free from any security. Mr. Dong
Li shall not cease to have management control over
the Company. Mr. Dong Li shall not crease to be the
Chairman of the board of directors of the Company.
At the date of approval of these audited consolidated
financial statements, such obligations have been
complied with.

Four of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited, Leoch
Battery Company Limited, Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. and
Leoch International Sales Limited were parties who act
as guarantors, to guarantee punctual performance of
the obligations under the Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had utilised
the amount of US$85,700,000 under the Facility
Agreement. As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding
term loan balance amounted to RMB526,864,000,
of which RMB117,081,000 and RMB409,783,000
are repayable within 1 year and in the second to third
years, inclusive, respectively. The term loan bears
interest at LIBOR+3% per annum.
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1% R RME) (THHERER) - EFEE
PRERUEBAERRRNERZEGIE -EFE
AN THERARBRNESTSIE -NILE
HEREBEZGAVBHRRAY AHALE
ERETTe

ARARNKREZEWNB AR BELTER
(Z&7#)HBBR QA Leoch Battery Company
Limited * Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd.} Leoch
International Sales Limited ({EA#ERA) » &R
EREITREWRE FTHET-

N-E—NF+-A=+—B AEECDEH
BRI ELE 3518 T A9 5KIE85,700,0003E 7T © 1Y
—E-RNF+ZA=+—HB KEEEHE
EE e B N R #5526,864,0007T F iR A R
117,081,0007T &2 A R #409,783,0007T 5 71178
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&RRHIET
31 December 2016
—E-RFt+-_A=1+—H
31.Deferred Tax 31. IRIERL I8

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities FREEHBEENBENEHIERMT
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets FEiEHREEE

Depreciation
and Equipment
Provision for impairment invested in
impairment of property, subsidiaries Unpaid  Provision for Deferred
of trade plant and with revalued Unused payrolland  impairment of Unrealised government
receivables equipment Tax losses amount tax credit accruals inventories profit grants Total
n¥ BER SEEERY
25 BURE REFE RERKE #8BA AHIER fid3
BERE RAE HEER REANRE HEER B8R HFEAERR FERER BR#R At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBFT N S ARETR ARETR N S NS ARBTTL ARBFT ANEBTFT

Gross defered taxassetsat W -F-HF-A—AH

1 January 2015 EREREAELE 1,345 8,183 21,720 5,651 1,338 6,004 425 9,101 - 59,767
Deferred tax credited{charged) to 43t/ (HIR )

the statement of profitorloss ~ BEEMELHE

during the year M (1,300 076) ) - (3487) (¢25) 5530 - (4,168)

Gross deferred tax assets st~ WZZ—RFTZA=+-14

31 December 2015 and RZF-R"E-A-BH
1 January 2016 ERERBEELE 1,649 6,883 23,644 4,939 1,338 2517 - 14,631 - 55,601

Deferred tax credited/{charged) to /3T A/ (1% 8)
the statement of profitorloss ~ BEEMETHE
during the yeer 5477 (1300 0.381) v - 129 1773 (5614 174 (686)

Gross deferred taxassetsat = F—AF+-A=+-H
31 December 2016 WEEREEELE 7,126 5583 21,263 4901 1,338 2,646 1773 9017 1,742 54,715
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31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—H

31.Deferred Tax (continued) 1. IEJERIIE (4&)

206

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE
Change
in fair Fair value
value of adjustments
Capitalised available- arising from
interest for-sale  acquisition of
expense investment subsidiaries Others Total
T E WIEHE
[55-2:X(4:1] RENAR AREER
FISHX BEZD LAEERE Htt @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT AEETT AEREFT ARETT
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—REF
at 1 January 2015 —A—HAEL
HEAERE 11,891 352 - 1,340 13,583
Deferred tax credited to the ~ FRINBEEFR
statement of profit or loss MIERRIE
during the year (1,383) - - (420) (1,803
Deferred tax charged to ERNKREEMEE
other comprehensive Wiis B IR
income during the year - 4,149 - - 4,149
Gross deferred tax liabiites ~ R =F—R%F
at 31 December 2015 +ZA=Z+-8k
and 1 January 2016 —E-R~F¥-H—H
MEEHERGERE 10,508 4,501 - 920 15,929
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENHB A
(note 35) (Ffi7E35) - - 5,584 - 5,584
Deferred tax credited to the ~ FRF ABH R
statement of profit or loss ELEHE
during the year (1,383) - (346) (107) (1,836)
Deferred tax charged to FRIREEMZE
other comprehensive YRR RIERIR
income during the year - 11,771 - - 11,771
Gross deferred tax liabilies ~ R =T —~"F+= A
at 31 December 2016 =T-BEERE
BEAE 9,125 16,272 5,238 813 31,448
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

31.Deferred Tax (continueqd)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of RMB67,143,000 (2015: RMB40,765,000) that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised as at 31 December 2016 and
2015. As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB333,112,000 (2015:
RMB151,007,000).

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=-_A=+—H

1IRER TR (48)

EEHEARE (&)

AEBERFBEAMEEAREBEEEAR
67,143,000 (ZE—HE: ARK
40,765,0007T ) * 5% 5 E A BLAF A A R SE R
RIERB A - AR ZEEIB Y HE EE—
ERRF BRI B A RIFTE AL - O BBt UL TR
BEFRIBEE MR AT KA ERT
i M) AT 4 & B B TE R R R

RIEA B SEFTSHE - AP B IR S B95N
PRI E D EMINRRE B TR EBIZ10%
BUTERNR -ZRER T \F—A—H
BEMMBERANR ST NF—A—BRESE
B ZFI o i R B R b B2 SN B 2 B B AR
BEFIHEHTE  BEABKTENRE - LA
SEME  ERAREAR5%HK10%  Et - A&
B A ETHRFPBEAATARH B R RS R
ZEEN\F—A—BEAEENmAS IR
BRTEF -

R-ZE—XRE+-_A=+—8 WERAE
[ 7 A B A b A S RO BB A R RO SR B L AR
(ZBSMTENTL) BB RIELER
H-BEERE ZEWBRBEA AR
KA B&EF AR ZE—REFRZE
—HFE+ - A=+ BRI ERELR
HABE RZT—AF+ZA=1+—8 #ER
P B b BB A R A% & 75 B8 i I Ut
RELEFHEAENEHE=REEARNA
AR®333112000L (ZE—HF: ARK
151,007,0007T ) °
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31 December 2016
—E—RF+=ZAR=+—H

32.Share Capital 32. I/} AR
Shares il
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000% & & H &
HK$0.1 each (HK$’000) 01ETTHEER (TET) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE:
1,353,349,666 (2015: 1,353,319,666) 1,358,349,666/% (ZZ—HF:
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1,353,319,666/% ) & % HE0.1
(HK$'000) B EER (THT) 135,335 135,332
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARBTT 115,846 115,843
A summary of movements in the Company’s share AR RIIRAEFE 0T :
capital is as follows:
Number of
shares in Share
issue capital
[=%:£0)
R4 E [N
Notes RMB’000
B & ARET T
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—HF—HA—H 1,352,087,000 115,742
Exercise of share options 1TEEIR R i) 1,232,666 101
At 31 December 2015 WZZE—HEF+-_A=1+—8H 1,353,319,666 115,843
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-—RE+=-A=+—H
1 January 2016 hZFE—R"F—H—H 1,353,319,666 115,843
Exercise of share options TR E (ii) 30,000 3
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+=ZA=+—H 1,353,349,666 115,846
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32.Share Capital (continued)

Shares (continued)

U

(i)

The subscription rights attaching to 1,232,666
share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.40 to HK$0.90 per
share, resulting in the issue of 1,232,666 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB451,000. An amount
of RMB587,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

The subscription rights attaching to 30,000 share
options were exercised at a subscription price
of HK$0.80 per share, resulting in the issue of
30,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of RMB22,000.
An amount of RMB25,000 was transferred from
the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 33 to the financial statements.

31 December 2016
—E-XFt-A=+—H

2. RA (&
G (&)

) 1,232,606 AR EREM M REERED RS
§20.408 T E0. Q0B TLHREBEI TfFE - &
BrE%171,232,6060% & AR EE0. 1078 TTHY
Bin - AR EReRERAR
#451,0007T - FE R IET T 18 - ARKE
587,000 Bl B B IR i (R R s 1 = iR
EERRA

@ 30,0001 & I HEFE BT MO R BB M 2 3%
B20.80/8 ST RIBBEIT(E - BB AT
30,0000% & A% 1 {E0. 1078 T H B 19+ &
MRS KBRS RERARK22,000
T BE AR IET T{E % - ARME25,00070E)
BREREREERERDRERAN-

fBRRE

AR BIRERRE R B AR IB AT BB IT 2 BAY
T2 BN B SRR M FES3 -
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31 December 2016
—TE-RE+ZA=1+—H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. B IR FEET 2

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be 60,000,000 shares
representing approximately 4.5% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately after the
completion of the global offering, taking no account of
the exercise of the over-allotment option.

The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is determined by the
board of directors at its discretion and set out in the
relevant offer letters provided that it should not be less
than the nominal value of the shares.

After 28 October 2010, no further options will be
offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme but in other respects the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and
options which are granted on or before 28 October
2010 may continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

Any exercise of an option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may
be specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year:

33.

31 December 2016
—E-RXFt-A=+—H

BIRERTE (&)

BRAABENBRES
(&)

TTERBEERARBEABEET IR
B AR B BREFATSIR 2 5
2.

B B TR A AR LEBR
BRRBERAE LR

RERERAFREEBREEIE T A
TR BRI T :

2016 2015
—E-RE “E-RF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

& ANHEF
TEE EBREZA IRE EREHEB

HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share ’000
BRERT 45 BRET T
At 1 January n—H—H 1.66 23,272 1.58 25,507
Exercised during the year ~ FR1T{# 0.80 (30) 0.40 (1,100)
Forfeited during the year R8I 3.35 (2,854) 1.24 (1,135)
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 1.42 20,388 1.66 23,272

FR ARBIRD A B EETE B 2N
B HEBAFRIASE T (ZE—hF:
FAX1.0177T) °

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares at the dates on which the options were
exercised during the year was HK$1.13 per share
(2015: HK$1.01 per share).
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31 December 2016

—E—RF+=ZA=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

3.IBIRERTE (&)

BRAABENBRES

- — —
(continued) (&)
Movements in the Company’s share options under the FR ARBRBEXNAREERBRETS
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year are as HTHEREZEE T
follows:
Number of share options
BREYE
Name or category of At 1 January Exercised Forfeited At 31 December Date of grant  Exercise period Exercise price
participant SRELRANZAES 2016 during the year  during the year 2016  of share options  of share options of share options
RZB-RE WZB-RE
-E-8 ERTE EREN  TZASt-B  BRERLRE BRECES BREGEE
HKS per share
BiRET
Directors Bz
Ms. Zhao Huan HEZT 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1June 2010 1June 2012t 14
“2-%% 1 June 2022
~A-H “EF--FRf-RE
—5——¢Mﬂ A
Mr. Phiip Armstrong Noznesky  Philip Amstrong Noznesky % 4 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1June2010 1 June 20120 20
“2-%% 1 June 2022
~A-H “EF--FRf-RE
—5——¢Mﬂ A
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Other employees HivES 3 20,272,000 (30,000) (2,854,000) 17,388,000 1June 2010 1June2012to 02-20
in aggregate “T-%F 1 June 2022
~A-B  ZE--#7F-RZ
ZERIZFRA-H
23,272,000 (30,000) (2,854,000) 20,388,000
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the Pre-IPO
Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2016 are

as follows:

Exercise price

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+tZA=+—H

3.IBIRERTE (&)

BX AR ER B RE S
(%)
RoB—AFF-A=+—ABKITENE

IRAFRE R BN TR E LI TERNT :

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE TEH
13,250 HK$0.27% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E——HXNA—HBEZZE-__F"AH
13,250 HK$0.2% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
TE—=FXA—BEZE-__F,A—H
51,250 HK$0.27% 7t 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—NEAA-—BE-T-__FH—H
198,250 HK$0.27% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-FHFEXA-HE-ZE-__F,A—H
20,000 HK$0.47% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
T —FXRA—HBAEZZE-_—_FXA—H
20,000 HK$0.47 7t 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E—=FRA—BEZE-__F,A—H
20,000 HK$0.47% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NFERA—BEZZT_FA—H
120,000 HK$0.47% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-RFANA—REZE-_—_FXA—H
190,000 HK$0.67 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-——HFRA—BEE-__F,HA—
205,000 HK$0.67% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—FERA—BEZE-__4XA—H
205,000 HK$0.678 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
Eﬁz/\ﬂ EK—Q——EE/\H El
205,000 HK$0.67 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-RAFEANA—BEZE-__F,A—H
395,750 HK$0.87 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
TE-—EXA-HE-ZT-_F,XA—H
395,750 HK$0.87 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

—=FEXA—HE-ZE-—-"F,A—H
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31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—8H

33.Share Option Schemes 3.IEMESTE (&)

(continueqd)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAMBENERESTS
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE TS
410,750 HK$0.8/% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NMERNA—BEZZE-__F,"AH
410,750 HK$0.878 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—TE-—RAFERNA—BEZE-__F,A—H
777,750 HK$1.07 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-CFRA-BEZZT__FRA—
877,750 HK$1.07% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—ZFXA—HE-_ET-—_FXA—H
878,250 HK$1.0% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—ESNA—HE-_ZE-__FXA—H
890,250 HK$1.07 7t 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—HEANA—HE-_ZT-—_F,XA—H
402,500 HK$1.278 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E——FARNA-HEZZ-_—_FXA—
402,500 HK$1.27% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E—=FRNA—-HZEZZE=-Z—4FA—H
427,500 HK$1.278 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NERA-BEZTE-__FRA—
427,500 HK$1.2/8 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-—hERNA—BEZZE-_%FXAH
815,000 HK$1.47% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
TE——HEXNA—BEZE-__F,HA—H
815,000 HK$1.47 7t 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E-=FRA-BEZZT-__FXA—H
815,000 HK$1.47% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-MFEAA-—BEZZT-__FXA—H
815,000 HK$1.47% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-—hAERNA—BEZE-__F,HA—H
455,000 HK$1.678 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
— —ERNA—BEZE-__F5xA—
455,000 HK$1.678 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
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31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM FERTE (&)

(continueqd)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHRENERESTS
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE TEH
455,000 HK$1.6/8 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NFRA—BEZZT-_FA—H
455,000 HK$1.678 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-RFAA—HEZZE-_—_FXA—H
787,500 HK$1.87 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-CFRA-BEZZT-__FXA—H
787,500 HK$1.87 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E-=FXA—B&E-_ZF-_—_F,A—H
787,500 HK$1.8% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NFEANA—HBEZZE-_—_FA—H
787,500 HK$1.87 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-RFERA-BEZZT-__FXA—H
1,050,000 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
TE-—HEXA-HE-ZT-_F,XA—H
1,050,000 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
T =FXRA—HRAEZZE-_—FXA—H
1,050,000 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NFERA-BEZT-__FA—H
1,050,000 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-HFXA-HE-ZE-_—_F,A—H
20,388,000
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31 December 2016
TR -RE+ZA=1+—H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM FERTE (&)

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The 30,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 30,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$3,000
(equivalent to RMB3,000) and share premium of
HK$49,000 (equivalent to RMB44,000).

At 31 December 2016, the Company had outstanding
Pre-IPO Share Options for the subscription of
20,388,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share
Options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 20,388,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$2,039,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,824,000) and share premium of HK$26,912,000
(equivalent to RMB24,073,000), before related issuance
expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 20,190,000 share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.5% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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N7 T{£30,00015 i A% B B3 1 730,0008% 2
AR AR & B INIR AN3,000785 7T (FHE R A
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RZZ—RE+ZA=1+—8 KAREEXR
ITEERAFRERBAE  ATREE AR
BE AR IR AE AT E178 T20,388,000/% i% 5 * 48
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 14 October
2010 for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible persons for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group
and for such other purposes as the board of directors
may approve from time to time. Eligible persons of the
Scheme include any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), consultant or advisor of the Group
who, in the sole discretion of the board of directors, has
contributed to or will contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme is available to the directors
and employees (whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=-_A=+—H

3. rEntEl (/&)

BB R T &

ARBIET-IABEEE ([BREST
g BRRRMBRRN T —TF 1A
THRBEBHNERRERILENMRSR 5
AAREEEL BRSNS DR AEE
Mz AEMALTRHIERNER A8
EZETRHENEME M FEMNEERA
TERESSERA/CHABHAREE
HERMOAEEENESLES (TR
ShFREk) BRI SEEAA

R8I DR T AR BT B AR
EENMEER (TwmEBERR) -

BRI ARRES T2THRAERTERRA
BREHNEABEATNBRE  BAELISE
SIFITE AR o 1SN - AR+ —{E A
HfR R T AR RN T B RIELIFNITE
= SR FMEABEA L TRIERE -
FRBLR R BRI B R B0 37 T A 47 #90.1 %3k
feEBSH 8B (RIENIE L A BIAR RN
BREMET)E ABSELEBRRAE LBE
PR AL - B8 ST T IR S AR E ©
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31 December 2016
—TE-RE+ZA=1+—H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM FERTE (&)

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and certain
disclosure and reporting requirements.

The subscription price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company. A consideration of
RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of an
option or options.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on
16 November 2010, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme by
shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

Any exercise of an option granted under the Share
Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may be
specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the

Share Option Scheme during the year:

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

33. BB IRt &l (&)

BRESE (AF)

AN S SRR AR SR TR M R T TIE R AR

1

2016
ZE-RE —E-TE

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

mEEH ETH
TfEE BREE 1B BikEHE

HK$ HKS
per share ’000 per share '000
ShiEn T4 BRABT T
At 1 January m—H—8 1.71 21,720 1.82 21,484
Granted during the year FRE L 1.02 7,860 0.97 5,900
Lapsed during the year F R 2.39 (9,520) - -
Exercised during the year ~ FR71T{# - - 0.90 (133)
Forfeited during the year ~ F AR U 1.76 (2,150) 1.39 (5,531)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1.04 17,910 1.71 21,720
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31 December 2016
—RNE+-A=+—H

-z

—=

33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Movements in the Company’s share options under the
Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

Number of share options
BRLE

33. BB Ix st &l (&)

BRESTE (&)
EARR ARSI SR TR 2 2B

2
At 1 January Granted Lapsed Forfeited ~ At 31 December  Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
2016  during the year  during the year  during the year 2016 of share options of share options of share options
Name or category ~ SREHEH  R-F-RE RoB-A%
of participant A -A-A ERRH ERAN ERRN  TZAZT-B  BRERLEH BREMES BREMKE
HKS per share
BRET
Directors Ez
Mr. Cao Yixong Alan ~ ETTiERE 300,000 - (300,000) - - 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 to 239
“E-—%+-f-1CH 22 November 2016
R ZETZA-RE
ZE-AFt-RZTZA
Mr. Liu Yangsheng Ly 300,000 - (300,000) - - 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 to 239
ZE-—F+-FFZR 22 November 2016
Z¥-¥1R-RZ
ZE-AFt-RZTZR
Mr. Cao Yidong Alan BRI - 300,000 - - 300,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 102
ZE-RET-AZTZR 22 November 2026
ZB{E4-R-BE
“EoRET-AITIR
Mr. Liu Yangsheng Ly - 300,000 - - 300,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 102
ZE-RET-FZTZR 22 November 2026
“IT-tE+Cf-RE
“EoRET-AITIR
Mr. Lau Chi Kit Bt - 300,000 - - 300,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 10 102
ZE-RET-AZTZR 22 November 2026
SR EETIA-RE
ZERET-RCtCA
600,000 900,000 (600,000) - 900,000
Other employeesin ~ EftEEA 10,120,000 - 8,920,000) (1,200,000) - 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 to 239
aggregate I = 22 November 2016
ZF-%7-f-RZ
“E-AFt-RZtZB
4,700,000 - - (500,000) 4,200,000 20 November 2013 1 December 2014 to 090
ZR-ZET-AI1A 20 Novernber 2018
“F-MET-A-RZ
ZE-\$r-R=1H
1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 21 July 2014 20 August 2015 to 1.86
“E-PELA-t-R 21 Juy 2019
“T-REN\AZTRE
ZERELAZT-R
3,500,000 - - (450,000) 3,050,000 1 Api 2015 1 April 2016 o0 102
“2-REMA-B 1 Apri 2020
“T-REMR-BE
“E-3%MA-A
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 26 November 2015 1 December 2016 to 081
ST-RET-ACTRE 26 November 2020
“E-RETZR-BE
Z32%5+-R=15A
- 6,960,000 - - 6,960,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1.02
ZE-RET-BTTZE 22 November 2026
“F-t51-R-RZ
RN T-RITZB
21,120,000 6,960,000 (8,920,000) (2,150,000) 17,010,000
21,720,000 7,860,000 (9,520,000) (2,150,000) 17,910,000
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding at 31 December 2016 are as

follows:

Exercise price

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

3. REstEl (/&)

BRESTE (#)

RZE—RETZA=T—BRKRITENE
PR TTE(E A TE RN T -

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE T
1,500,000 HK$0.81%& 7T 1 December 2016 to 26 November 2020
CE-RE+-A—BE-ZE-_TF+—HF=-+8
4,200,000 HK$0.907% 7T 1 December 2014 to 20 November 2018
—E-NF+_A-BE_ZEZ-N\F+—-—HA=+H
3,050,000 HK$1.025% 7T 1 April 2016 to 1 April 2020
TE-RXFUA—HBE-_ZE-_FFWNA—H
7,860,000 HK$1.02% 7T 1 December 2017 to 22 November 2026
T —+tF+ZA—HEZZTZ-R"F+—A=+=H
1,300,000 HK$1.8675 7T 20 August 2015 to 21 July 2019
—E-RAFENAZTHEZZE-NAFtA=+—H
17,910,000

On 22 November 2016, 7,860,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme were granted to 42
employees of the Group. The fair value of these options
was HK$8,017,000 (equivalent to RMB7,110,000), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$408,000 (equivalent to RMB362,000) in the current
year.

RZE—RNE+—AZ+=8 BIEERE
FT &) 7,860,000 B IR B M A& E424% B
B - 2SR A R EEA8,017,000
BT (FHE R ARK7,110,0007T) * B &
& B 2 AR F S 1R R AR 1 52.408,0008 7T
(FBER AR362,0007T) °
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31 December 2016
—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as at the date of
grant by management, using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

3. AERTEl (/&)

BRESE (&)

REBBEES BIR L BEEN A EER
R AHEEEERA AR I
2 IR I BB AR PR IR 0 A6 S AR A T 7T
T o PRI ELSH ANER:

22 November 26 November 1 April

2016 2015 2015

—E-RF —T-hF —T-RF

Grant date R A +—A=+=H +—AZ=TRXH mA—H

Exercise price (HK$ per share) T E (FIUE L) 1.02 0.81 1.02

Expected dividend vield (%) & HARR B 2K (%) - - -

Expected volatility (%) T8 57 R 18 (%) 50.30 52.39 50.15

Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 2 B 1) 2 (%) 1.29 1.14 1.07
Expected life of share options ~ FEHABEARRE R F 8 (4F)

(years) 10 5 5

Weighted average share price at A% i B 2 inE
grant date (HK$ per share) FHRE (BRAET) 1.02 0.81 1.00

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility may not necessarily reflect the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

33.Share Option Schemes

34.

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding share options for the subscription of
17,910,000 shares under the Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.3% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 17,910,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$1,791,000 (equivalent to RMB1,602,000) and
share premium of HK$16,835,000 (equivalent to
RMB15,059,000), before related issuance expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 17,910,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 1.3% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions by Mr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to the subsidiaries directly
held by Mr. Dong Li before the group reorganisation on
8 June 2010.

33.

34.

31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=-_A=+—H

BiEstd (&)

BRESE (AF)

REEHR AR BB RITEERE IR
BEREIAE ST E118 T~17,910,0000% 8% 17 48 E
RARRE BB BEITIRAEI1.3% < BIFA
NAEIMBEARAER  2EITERITEER
EEEHE1717,910,00000 AR A1REYNE A%
Rt LA K ZBANIEAR,791,0008 7T (SR A
R #1,602,0007T ) & J% 17 4 816,835,000/ 7T
(HEERARK15,059,0007T) (FBRIAREEETT
FISZAT)

N3
ZA/N

EUERFERL B HR - R IREEAERTE
AIEA17,910,000(0 RITEEIHE - FHE
NAEINE BB BITIRAL1.3% °

e

AEEAFEIBEFENFE BB LEE
BIFNENEBRRNEFA RS RDET -

B PR
REENA GHREBIEA A AEFRITRBE

EFEAN T -ZFEXA\BEEEERA
AREEEFANHNBAREE -
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31 December 2016
—RNFE+-A=+—H

34.Reserves (continued)

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the reserve fund until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC subsidiaries. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the reserve
fund may be converted to increase paid-up capital/
issued capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve fund of
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB119,485,000
and RMB101,5638,000 as at 31 December 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of companies outside the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4.

Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 33 to the financial statements.

Available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
comprises the fair value differences arising from the
revaluation for the available-for-sale investments.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2016
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34. it (48)

EELEE

BRIBFE AT NEEAF BB A FA
BEETHREBRFI0RBEAEZELES

BEEZHHEDFMERNS0%51E - £
Bl AELERTBARE TRERBE T S0 EE
NIES A] T AR A hn A BT B A R
BARBEITRA EREREBOFISRE
BRZB MR R 51 B AN #925% o F B &8 A 7]
WABER_TE—Fr_F—RF+=A
=+—H5 5B ARKE119,485000T X AR
#101,538,0007T °

BE 508 B 1k 4
PR B FEEHRIEE R E R B AINAE]

BI IS TRk ME A MIE K =58 - 2R B IRER
M FE2 40 2 5T BUERBR IR

EREE
ARIARD BB A B R R B RTRBE
BRI - BN BT HRR I 338 ©

AHHEREEMRE

AHHEREELHBRREEGRIHEE
BRENAEEEZRHEK
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35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries

Leoch Accupower

The investment in Leoch Accupower was accounted
for as an investment in a joint venture as at 31
December 2015. On 10 July 2016, the Group obtained
control over Leoch Accupower which then became a
subsidiary of the Group.

As a result of the remeasurement of the
Group’s investment in the 51% equity interest in
Leoch Accupower from its carrying amount of
RMB18,998,000 to its fair value of RMB29,500,000
immediately before the acquisition, a gain of
RMB10,502,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2016. The acquisition was made as a part
of the Group’s strategy to expand its market share of
lead-acid batteries in Malaysia.

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

35. W BB S B8 A~ =]

Leoch Accupower

RZE—RF+=A=+—H #&%&ELeoch
Accupower /I ABRFIER G E RAIZIRE
RZZT—A"FtA+H ~NEEESLeoch
Accupowerf 1 HiliE - 1% - 2 AR AARE
ErKI B AT -

MREZWE 28 A& B RLeoch
Accupower 51%& Az 2 I8 AW EREEA
R®¥18998000 BT ERALNALEBEAR
#£29,500,0007T - MR BE T —~F+=H
=T+ —RALEFEZEEERRTERLE R
AR #10,502,0007T © =R Ui T A AN S B iR
FEE R BRI S BA B B T 510 B SR A
H)—EB5 o
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31 December 2016
—E-RFt+=ZA=+—8H

35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(continued)

Leoch Accupower (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Leoch Accupower as at the date of acquisition were as

follows:

35. WIEMTEB A =] (4&)

Leoch Accupower (#&)

Leoch AccupowerrA Y i B B 2 AT 3 R/ & 2
BEANEENT:

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition
RUEERFRER
ZAREE

Notes RMB$’000
B 5E ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Customer relationship

Trademark

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

%%%ﬁ%&*

ﬁé&ﬁﬁ %
RENENRE (56,970)
IE&FEJE% (9,554)
u+/\\$ETT1ﬁE )
EEIBEE )

13 64,809
16 9,071
18 4,588
18 20,124

23,310

IE&FELIAZT%F 12,763

4,542

31 (5,584

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

Non-controlling interests

At ER A A

40,864
(20,024)

Goodwill on acquisition

WiERELNEE

20,840
17 8,660

29,500

Satisfied by:

Previously held equity interest remeasured

at acquisition-date fair value

PNV ES I E
W RE B

{ 15%%&1:‘#2%
SRS B B I AN i 29,500
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35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(continued)
Leoch Accupower (continued)
No transaction costs were incurred in this acquisition.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

35. W iBE N =) (A&

Leoch Accupower (#&)
ZW P W EEE AR HKA

HECD R BRI BENRAEH -

BRYENBARMNRSRENNNT

RMB’000

ARETTT

Cash and bank balances acquired FrEiR & RIRTT 84 61
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included i AREEFRERENBE S NIRE

in cash flows from investing activities ZEBMRAEE 61

Since the acquisition, Leoch Accupower contributed
RMB11,566,000 to the Group’s turnover and
RMB9,585,000 loss to the consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue from continuing operations of the
Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been RMB6,287,951,000 and RMB225,968,000
respectively.

B =X W - Leoch Accupower /& N £ [E &
B ARE11,566,0007T MAHE T
—NF+ZA=+—BLFEZEERFNE
i A R #59,585,0007T 2 [E518 °

BRZEBEHRFNEL KEANKER
BREFB 2GS MAEBFREN D RIS
A K #56,287,951,0007T & A E #5225,968,000
ﬁO
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31 December 2016
—TE-RE+ZA=1+—H

35. WIEMTEB A =] (4&)

35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(continued)

Zhaoqging Leoch Marshell Electric
Vehicle Co., Ltd.

On 6 June 2016, the Group entered into an investment
agreement with Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle
Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Marshell”) and Zhaoging
Leoch Marshell Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd. (“Zhaoging
Leoch Marshell”), both of which are wholly owned by
Mr. Dong Li. Pursuant to the investment agreement, the
Group will acquire 75.34% of the enlarged registered
capital of Zhaoging Leoch Marshell at a consideration
of RMB121,065,300.

Zhaoging Leoch Marshell is principally engaged in the
leasing of property. The major asset held by Zhaoqging
Leoch Marshell is the land use right in respect of a
piece land located in Zhaoging, the PRC (“Zhaoqing
Land”). Through the acquisition of the 75.34% equity
interests in Zhaoqging Leoch Marshell, the Group will
have control over the land use right in respect of
Zhaoqing Land.

The investment agreement was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 12 August 2016. The
consideration has been paid by 9 September 2016.

In the opinion of the directors, up to the date of
acquisition, Zhaoqing Leoch Marshell has not carried
out any significant business transactions except for
holding Zhaoging Land. Therefore, Zhaoging Leoch
Marshell acquired by the Group does not constitute a
business. The above acquisition has been accounted
for by the Group as an acquisition of assets.
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35.Acquisition of Subsidiaries
(continued)

Zhaoqging Leoch Marshell Electric
Vehicle Co., Ltd. (continued)

The net assets acquired by the Group in the above
transaction are as follows:

31 December 2016
—E—ARFt+ZA=+—H

35. WHEMTEB A 7] (4&)

ERELEAREHERRLT
(#4&)

AEER B SWBENEEFENT

Note RMB’000
Nz AREEFTT

Prepaid land lease payments AN E IR 16 39,625

Cash and bank balances e RRITHE 121,065
160,690

Non-controlling interests FEIE PRI 2 (39,625)
121,065

Satisfied by: AR

Cash B 121,065

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

ERRBHBARNRESRENTT

RMB’000

ARBFT

Cash consideration HeNRE (121,085)
Cash and bank balances acquired FrER & RIRTT4E 121,065

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included T AREEFREREMNBEE MRS
in cash flows from investing activities ZEBMRAEE -
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31 December 2016

—E-RF+=ZRAR=+—H

36.Pledge of Assets

36. E EH

Prepaid Property,
land lease plant and Pledged Trade
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
At NE BER
HEFE ®E BEAEN EZRURA EHY
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFL ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note 16) (note 13) (note 27) (note 24)
(FiE16) (F5E13) (FsE27) (PE24)
31 December 2016 ZE-RE
T=A=+-A
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings (note 30) (P 5E30) 78,520 643,415 9,020 86,651 817,606
Bills payable (note 28) ERZE (K28 - - 404,771 - 404,771
lssue of letters of credit & H{EME - - 77,094 - 77,094
78,520 643,415 490,885 86,651 1,299,471
31 December 2015 “Z-1%+-R
=t-8
Interest-bearing bank STEBRITEE
borrowings (note 30) CEZ) 33,263 923,251 174,096 78,271 1,208,881
Bills payable (note 28) ERZE (FiEes) - - 322,125 - 322,125
Issue of letters of credit ~ #HEFRE - - 84,180 - 84,180
33,263 923,251 580,401 78,271 1,615,186
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37.0perating Le